
High Peak Borough Council

AUDIT & REGULATORY COMMITTEE AGENDA

Date: Wednesday, 25 May 2016

Time: 6.30 pm

Venue: The Committee Room, Municipal Buildings, Glossop

The internal and external auditors will be available to meet committee 
members from 6.15 to 6.30 pm. Any councillors who are not able or do 
not wish to attend the session at 6.15 pm are requested to join the 
meeting with the Executive Councillors and officers at 6.30 pm.

17 May 2016

PART 1
1. Apologies for absence 

2. To receive Disclosures of Interest on any matters before the Committee 

 i) Disclosable Pecuniary Interests 
ii) Other Interests. 

3. To approve the Minutes of the meeting held on 23 February 2016 (Pages 3 - 8)

4. External Audit Update (Pages 9 - 24)

5. External Audit Planned Audit Fee for 2016/17 (Pages 25 - 28)

6. 2015/16 Internal Audit Periodic Report - February to April 2016 (Pages 29 - 48)

7. Internal Audit Annual Audit Plan 2016/17 (Pages 49 - 54)

8. Whistleblowing Policy (Pages 55 - 64)

9. LGA Sector Led Body for the Appointment of External Auditors Opt-in (Pages 65 - 
72)

10. Review of the Council and Committee Procedure Rules (Pages 73 - 86)

11. The Mayoral Points System (Pages 87 - 90)

12. To resolve that the public and press be excluded from the meeting for the following 
items because there may be disclosure to them of exempt information as defined in 
Part I of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972.
 

Public Document Pack



PART 2
13. To approve the exempt Minutes of the meeting held on 23 February 2016 (Pages 

91 - 92)
(Paragraph 3 - Information relating to the financial or business affairs of any 
particular person (including the authority holding that information) )

14. Buxton Crescent & Thermal Spa Project - Oral Update 

SIMON BAKER
CHIEF EXECUTIVE



3.1 
 

`                                                             bbv 
 
 
 
AUDIT AND REGULATORY COMMITTEE  
 
Meeting: Tuesday, 23 February 2016 at 6.30 pm in the Cafe, Buxton Pavilion 

Gardens 
 
Present: Councillor Pritchard (Chairman)                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                               

 
Councillors Barrow, Boynton, Claff, Grooby, Helliwell, A McKeown (substitute 
for Longos from 6.37 pm), Quinn, Sloman, Robins and Walton. 
 
A Stokes  - Executive Director (Transformation) 

  C Hazeldene  - Finance and Procurement Manager 
E Bennett  - Accountant 
J Leak   - Audit Manager 
V Higgins  - Information Business Partner 
R Tuffrey  - Principal Regeneration Officer  
H Gale  - Member Services Officer 
 
Phil Jones and Allison Rhodes (External Audit) and Councillor Thrane were 
also in attendance. 
 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Douglas and Longos.       
 

16/36  MINUTES 
  (Agenda Item 3) 
  

RESOLVED: 
 
That the Minutes of the meeting held on 30 September 2015 be approved as 
a correct record.  
 

16/37 ANNUAL AUDIT LETTER FOR 2014/15 
(Agenda Item 4) 
 
Consideration was given to the key findings arising from the work carried out 
by the Council’s External Auditors for the year ended 31 March 2015.  It was 
noted that the actual fees for the Council audit were £63,030. 

 
 RESOLVED: 

 
That the Annual Audit Letter for 2014/15 be noted. 

 
16/38  CERTIFICATION OF CLAIMS AND RETURNS ANNUAL REPORT 

(Agenda Item 5) 
 
The report summarised the certification of two claims and returns for the 
financial year 2014/15 relating to expenditure of £23.5 million.  There were no 
issues highlighted from the certification work.  
 

 High Peak Borough Council 

Page 3

Agenda Item 3



Audit and Regulatory Committee 
Tuesday, 23 February 2016  
 

3.2 
 

RESOLVED: 
 
That officers involved be thanked for their work and the Certification of Claims 
and Returns Annual Report noted. 

 
16/39 EXTERNAL AUDIT 2015/16 AUDIT PLAN 

(Agenda Item 6) 
 

Phil Jones, External Auditor, presented the Audit Plan for 2015/16.  It was 
reported that £2.4 million was the predicted cumulative loss over the four year 
period, following the 1% reduction in rent income and when compared with the 
Housing Revenue Account Business Plan.   
 
The definition of Highways Network Asset for Borough and District Councils 
was discussed.  The expectation was that the 2016/17 CIPFA Code would 
provide the means for non Highways Authorities to determine that they do not 
have assets that meet the definition, which would otherwise require work to 
identify and value the assets in readiness for 2016/17. 
 
RESOLVED: 

 
That Council be recommended to note the External Audit Plan for 2015/16. 

 
16/40  EXTERNAL AUDIT UPDATE 

(Agenda Item 7) 
 

There was an update which included a summary of emerging national issues 
and developments relevant to the Council and a number of challenge 
questions in respect of the emerging issues for consideration by the 
Committee.  The new local audit framework, Audit Panels, appointing auditors 
in 2017 for 2018, requirements and rotation rules for staff within organisations 
were discussed. 

   
RESOLVED: 

 
That the External Audit Update be noted. 

 
16/41 EXTERNAL AUDIT INFORMING THE RISK ASSESSMENT 

 (Agenda Item 8) 
 
Allison Rhodes, External Auditor, advised that the purpose of the report was to 
contribute towards the effective two-way communication between auditors and 
the Council's Audit Committee. The report covered important areas of the 
auditor risk assessment required under auditing standards.   
 
Discussion took place on financial statements, review of procedures, effect of 
national living wage costs, hospital deficits, local authority income streams, 
business rates, waste collection, Alliance efficiencies, New Homes Bonus and 
the National Park area. 

   
 RESOLVED: 

Page 4



Audit and Regulatory Committee 
Tuesday, 23 February 2016  
 

3.3 
 

 
That the report be noted. 

 
 
16/42 REVIEW OF RISK MANAGEMENT STRATEGY 

 (Agenda Item 9) 
 
 The updated Risk Management Strategy including the Council’s risk tolerance 

thresholds were considered. 
 

 RESOLVED: 
 

That the revised Risk Management Strategy detailed in Appendix 1 to the 
report be approved. 

 
16/43 RISK MANAGEMENT UPDATE 

 (Agenda Item 10) 
 

 The Committee considered a report the purpose of which was to allow the 
robust scrutiny of the Council’s risk management arrangements in accordance 
with generally accepted good practice.   

   
 Discussion took place on tolerance thresholds, impact rather than likelihood 
and service reviews. 
 
 RESOLVED: 

 
 1. That the Council’s current risk position be noted.  
 

2. That the mitigation plans summarised within Appendix A (strategic 
risks) and Appendix B (operational risks) of the report be approved. 

 
16/44 ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT – PROGRESS AGAINST 2014/15 

ACTION PLAN 
 (Agenda Item 11) 

 
Consideration was given to the Annual Governance Statement and progress 
against the 2014/15 action plan.  The Council is required to conduct a review 
at least once in a year of the effectiveness of its system of internal control and 
approve an Annual Governance Statement (AGS), prepared in accordance 
with proper practices in relation to internal control, which is to accompany the 
Authority’s statement of accounts.  ‘Proper practices in relation to internal 
control’ relates to guidance contained in the CIPFA/SOLACE guidance on 
‘Delivering Good Governance in Local Government’. 

 
 Consideration was given to: 

• The gas policy for housing stock having been approved at Joint 
Consultative Committee; 

• Emergency Planning Control Group (EPCG), Joint Emergency Services 
Interoperability Programme (JESIP), recent simulated exercise and 
possible report to Community Select Committee; 

Page 5



Audit and Regulatory Committee 
Tuesday, 23 February 2016  
 

3.4 
 

• Communication Strategy, house style, use of acronyms, plain English 
and the need for consistent approach; and 

• Staffing changes and structures available on the intranet. 
  
 RESOLVED: 

 
That the progress information contained within the report be noted. 
 

16/45 TREASURY MANAGEMENT STRATEGY STATEMENT (TMSS) 2016/17 
(Agenda Item 12) 

 
The purpose of the report was to allow members of the Committee to consider 
and endorse the Council’s Treasury Management Strategy for 2016/17, 
ensuring that its capital and treasury activities for the next four years were 
affordable and properly managed.   
 
Discussion took place on the Council’s capital expenditure plans, debt caps, 
the Housing Revenue Account and advantages of a 1 pool approach.  

 
RESOLVED: 

 
That Council be recommended to approve the Annual Treasury Management 
Strategy Statement (TMSS) 2016/17. 
  

16/46 TREASURY MANAGEMENT UPDATE: MID-YEAR REPORT 2015/16 
 (Agenda Item 13) 

 
The Council’s Treasury Management performance in 2015/16 was scrutinised 
in compliance with the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and 
Accountancy’s (CIPFA) Code of Practice on Treasury Management 2009 and 
generally accepted good practice.  
 
Discussion took place on the £32,000 anticipated surplus on investment 
income and Nordea AB based in Sweden. 
 
RESOLVED: 

 
That Council be recommended to note the Treasury Management position (as 
at 31st December 2015). 

 
16/47 2015/16 INTERNAL AUDIT PERIODIC REPORT SEPTEMBER 2015 TO 

JANUARY 2016 
 (Agenda Item 14) 
 

 The Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 required the Council to “undertake 
an effective internal audit to evaluate the effectiveness of its risk management, 
control and governance processes, taking into account public sector internal 
auditing standards or guidance”.  In accordance with the Public Sector Internal 
Audit Standards, the Audit Manager must report periodically to the Audit 
Committee on the internal audit activity’s performance relative to its plan.  

 

Page 6



Audit and Regulatory Committee 
Tuesday, 23 February 2016  
 

3.5 
 

 It was reported that all report recommendations had been agreed with 
managers.  Glossop Market and the administration of Elections were 
discussed.   
 
 RESOLVED: 

 
That the progress information contained within the report be noted. 
 

16/48  EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC 
 (Agenda Item 15) 
  
 RESOLVED: 
 
 That the public and press be excluded from the meeting for the following items 

because there may be disclosure to them of exempt information as defined in 
paragraphs 3 and 5 of Part I of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 
1972. 
 
SUMMARY OF EXEMPT ITEMS 
 

16/49 MINUTES 
(Agenda Item 16) 

 
RESOLVED: 
  
That the Exempt Minutes of the meeting held on 30 September 2015 be 
approved as a correct record. 

 
16/50 BUXTON CRESCENT & THERMAL SPA PROJECT – ORAL UPDATE  

(Agenda Item 17) 
 

The Committee received an oral update relating to the Buxton Crescent and 
Spa Project and associated risks. 
 
RESOLVED: 
 
That the update be noted. 
 
  
 
The meeting concluded at 8.03 pm. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 CHAIRMAN 

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank



Audit and Regulatory Committee  

Progress and Update Report for  

High Peak Borough Council 

Year ended 31 March 2016 
13 May 2016 

Phil Jones 

Engagement Lead 

T 0121 232 5232 

E  phil.w.jones@uk.gt.com 

Allison Rhodes 

Audit Manager 

T 0121 232 5285 

E  allison.rhodes@uk.gt.com 

Emma Cable 

In Charge Auditor  

T 0121 232 5153 

E  emma.cable@uk.gt.com 

P
age 9

A
genda Item

 4



Audit Committee progress report and emerging issues and developments – High Peak Borough Council 

2 © 2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved. 

The contents of  this report relate only to the matters which have come to our 

attention, which we believe need to be reported to you as part of  our audit 

process. It is not a comprehensive record of  all the relevant matters, which may 

be subject to change, and in particular we cannot be held responsible to you for 

reporting all of  the risks which may affect your business or any weaknesses in 

your internal controls. This report has been prepared solely for your benefit and 

should not be quoted in whole or in part without our prior written consent. We 

do not accept any responsibility for any loss occasioned to any third party 

acting, or refraining from acting on the basis of  the content of  this report, as 

this report was not prepared for, nor intended for, any other purpose. 

P
age 10



Audit Committee progress report and emerging issues and developments – High Peak Borough Council 

3 © 2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved. 

Contents 

Contents Page 

Introduction 4 

Progress at May 2016 5 

Results of interim audit work 7 

Value for money 10 

Emerging issues and developments: 

   Grant Thornton reports 

   Other publications 

 

13 

14 

P
age 11



Audit Committee progress report and emerging issues and developments – High Peak Borough Council 

4 © 2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved. 

Introduction 

Members of the Audit  and Regulatory Committee can find further useful material on 

our website www.grant-thornton.co.uk, where we have a section dedicated to our work 

in the public sector. Here you can download copies of our publications including: 

• Better Together: Building a successful joint venture company; 

http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/building-a-successful-joint-venture-

company/ 

• Knowing the Ropes – Audit Committee; Effectiveness Review ; 

www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/knowing-the-ropes--audit-committee-

effectiveness-review-2015/ 

• Making devolution work: A practical guide for local leaders (October 2015) 

www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/making-devolution-work/ 

If you would like further information on any items in this briefing, or would like to 

register with Grant Thornton to receive regular email updates on issues that are of 

interest to you, please contact either your Engagement Lead or Engagement Manager. 

This paper provides the Audit and Regulatory Committee 

with a report on progress in delivering our responsibilities 

as your external auditors.  

Allison Rhodes 
Engagement Manager 
T 0121 232 5285 

M 07880 456 118 

E allison.rhodes@uk.gt.com 

Phil Jones 
Engagement Lead 
T 0121 232 5232 

M 07880 456 114 

E phil.w.jones@uk.gt.com 

P
age 12

http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/building-a-successful-joint-venture-company/
http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/building-a-successful-joint-venture-company/
http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/building-a-successful-joint-venture-company/
http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/building-a-successful-joint-venture-company/
http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/building-a-successful-joint-venture-company/
http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/building-a-successful-joint-venture-company/
http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/building-a-successful-joint-venture-company/
http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/building-a-successful-joint-venture-company/
http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/building-a-successful-joint-venture-company/
http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/building-a-successful-joint-venture-company/
http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/building-a-successful-joint-venture-company/
http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/building-a-successful-joint-venture-company/
http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/knowing-the-ropes--audit-committee-effectiveness-review-2015/
http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/knowing-the-ropes--audit-committee-effectiveness-review-2015/
http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/knowing-the-ropes--audit-committee-effectiveness-review-2015/
http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/knowing-the-ropes--audit-committee-effectiveness-review-2015/
http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/knowing-the-ropes--audit-committee-effectiveness-review-2015/
http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/knowing-the-ropes--audit-committee-effectiveness-review-2015/
http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/knowing-the-ropes--audit-committee-effectiveness-review-2015/
http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/knowing-the-ropes--audit-committee-effectiveness-review-2015/
http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/knowing-the-ropes--audit-committee-effectiveness-review-2015/
http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/knowing-the-ropes--audit-committee-effectiveness-review-2015/
http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/knowing-the-ropes--audit-committee-effectiveness-review-2015/
http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/knowing-the-ropes--audit-committee-effectiveness-review-2015/
http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/knowing-the-ropes--audit-committee-effectiveness-review-2015/
http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/knowing-the-ropes--audit-committee-effectiveness-review-2015/
http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/knowing-the-ropes--audit-committee-effectiveness-review-2015/
http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/making-devolution-work/
http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/making-devolution-work/
http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/making-devolution-work/
http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/making-devolution-work/
http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/making-devolution-work/


Audit Committee progress report and emerging issues and developments – High Peak Borough Council 

5 © 2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved. 

Progress at 13 May 2016 

2015/16 work Completed Comments 

Fee Letter  
We issued the 'Planned fee letter for 2015/16 in April 2015. 

  

April 2015 

 

We have also recently issued the fee letter for 2016/17, with no change to the fee proposed. 

This is reported to this meeting of the Audit and Regulatory committee. 

Accounts Audit Plan 
We are required to issue a detailed accounts audit plan to the 

Council setting out our proposed approach in order to give an 

opinion on the Council's 2015-16 financial statements. 

 

We also inform you of any subsequent changes to our audit 

approach. 

 

February 2016 

This was presented to the Audit and Regulatory Committee in February. 

Interim accounts audit  
Our interim fieldwork visit includes: 

• updating our review of the Council's control environment 

• updating our understanding of financial systems 

• review of Internal Audit reports on core financial systems 

• early work on emerging accounting issues 

• early substantive testing 

 

 

March 2016 

 

Interim audit findings for the work completed to date are included in this report (pages 7-9).  

 

As part of our formal communication between auditors and the council's Audit and Regulatory 

Committee, as 'those charged with governance' we prepare a specific report which covers 

some important areas of the auditor risk assessment where we are required to make inquiries 

of management and the Audit Committee under auditing standards. This was also presented 

to the Audit and Regulatory Committee in February. 

Progress against plan 
On track 

Opinion and VfM conclusion 

Plan to give before deadline of   
30 September 2016 

Outputs delivered 

Fee letter, Progress Reports, delivered  
to plan 

P
age 13



Audit Committee progress report and emerging issues and developments – High Peak Borough Council 

6 © 2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved. 

Progress at 13 May 2016 

2015/16 work Completed Comments 

Final accounts audit 
Including: 

• Audit of the 2015-16 financial statements 

• proposed opinion on the Council's accounts 

 

Planned for July  - 

August 

 

We are planning to complete our audit by 31st August as part of the 

transition to the earlier closedown and audit cycle that is required 

from 2018. 

To help the Council prepare appropriate evidence to support the 

financial statements, we have provided a schedule of the working 

papers that we expect and discussed the implications of emerging 

accounting matters with finance staff. 

Value for Money (VfM) conclusion 
The scope of our work has changed and is set out in the final guidance issued by the 
National Audit Office in November 2015. The Code requires auditors to satisfy themselves 
that; "the Council has made proper arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and 
effectiveness in its use of resources". 

The guidance confirmed the overall criterion as; "in all significant respects, the audited 
body had proper arrangements to ensure it took properly informed decisions and deployed 
resources to achieve planned and sustainable outcomes for taxpayers and local people". 

The three sub criteria for assessment to be able to give a conclusion overall are: 

• Informed decision making 

• Sustainable resource deployment 

• Working with partners and other third parties 

 

Field work in March – 

July , formal 

conclusion reported 

by 30 September 

2016 

 

 
We have set out the result of our risk assessment and the proposed 
focus of our work at pages 10 - 12. 
 
The results of our VfM audit work and the key messages arising will 
be reported in our Audit Findings Report. 
 
We will include our conclusion as part of our report on your financial 
statements which we will give by 30 September 2016. 
 

Other activities 
 

We provide a range of workshops, along with network events for members 

and publications to support the Council. 

 

February 2016 

 

 

Ongoing 

 

We have provided a local workshop covering changes to 

accounting standards and the Code of Practice, and emerging 

issues and future developments, to support officers involved in the 

preparation of the Financial Statements.  

Further details of the publications that may be of interest to the 

Council are set out from page 13. 

P
age 14



Audit Committee progress report and emerging issues and developments – High Peak Borough Council 

7 © 2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved. 

Results of  interim audit work 

Work performed Conclusion 

Internal audit We have completed a high level review of internal audit's overall 

arrangements. We have also considered the outcome of internal 

audit's work on the Council's key financial systems to date. 

Overall, we have concluded that the arrangements for internal audit contribute to an 

effective internal control environment.  

Our review of internal audit work has not identified any weaknesses which impact on 

our audit approach. 

Entity level controls We have obtained an understanding of the overall control 

environment relevant to the preparation of the financial statements 

including: 

• Communication and enforcement of integrity and ethical values 

• Commitment to competence 

• Participation by those charged with governance 

• Management's philosophy and operating style 

• Organisational structure 

• Assignment of authority and responsibility 

• Human resource policies and practices 

Our work has identified no material weaknesses in these overall controls which are 

likely to adversely impact on the Council's financial statements  

Journal entry 
controls 

We have reviewed the Council's journal entry policies and 
procedures as part of determining our testing strategy and have not 
identified any material weaknesses which are likely to adversely 
impact on the Council's control environment or financial statements.  

Further work will be completed at the accounts visit to extract journals with 'unusual' 

criteria for detailed review. 

The findings of  our interim audit work, and the impact of  our findings on 
the accounts audit approach, are summarised below. 

 

P
age 15



Audit Committee progress report and emerging issues and developments – High Peak Borough Council 

8 © 2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved. 

Results of  interim audit work 

Work performed Conclusion 

IT controls We updated the high level review of the 

general IT control environment, (following up 

the detailed review completed in 2014/15) as 

part of the overall review of the internal 

controls system.  

We considered the progress made to 

implement the recommendations made in 

2014/15. 

Our work has identified no material weaknesses which are likely to adversely impact on the Council's financial 

statements.  

With respect to the prior year recommendations we note: 

• That the recommendation to periodically review users access rights is deferred until the staff changes 

brought about by the service review process are concluded. This will then be scheduled to take place 

every six months.  

• A review of staff assigned administrator access rights has taken place, the number of Northgate staff with 

admin access is particularly high due to the way in which support is provided by a number of support 

engineers. However Northgate will review this every two months and identify dormant accounts.  

Walkthrough testing We have completed walkthrough tests of the 

Council's controls operating in areas where 

we consider that  there is a risk of material 

misstatement to the financial statements – 

namely employee remuneration and 

operating expenses. 

We set out below one issue that we  which we wish to bring to your attention and which represents a 

weakness which impacts upon our planned audit approach. 

Weaknesses in the operation of the bank reconciliation 

The Council have been unable to complete a full and satisfactory reconciliation of the bank account balance 

to the general ledger since July 2015, following an upgrade to the cash receipting system. We understand 

that management are discussing this with the software suppliers and working to seek a resolution to this 

problem. Internal Audit are carrying out detailed work in this area. 

We consider that the bank reconciliation is an important internal control mechanism throughout the year to 

demonstrate that all transactions affecting cash and the main accounting system are identified and recorded. 

We also review the bank reconciliation as part of our year end audit, to confirm that the cash balance is 

accurately stated. It is important that the Council is able to provide this reconciliation and that any imbalance 

in the reconciliation, even where that might be considered immaterial, is investigated to clearly demonstrate 

that it does not mask other more significant differences. 

Other than this matter, our walkthough testing confirms that internal controls have been implemented by the 

Council in accordance with our documented understanding and our work has not identified any weaknesses 

which impact on our planned audit approach.  

P
age 16



Audit Committee progress report and emerging issues and developments – High Peak Borough Council 

9 © 2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved. 

Results of  interim audit work 

Work performed Conclusion 

Employee 

remuneration 

 

In our testing completed to date we have: 
• Performed a trend analysis for the first 10 months of the year to identify areas which 

may require additional procedures. 
• tested a sample of items of payroll expenditure from months 1 to 10 to source 

documents and to contract documentation to confirm the accuracy of pay. 

We have not yet concluded our work in this area as for some payments 

we were unable to verify the payment to contract documentation held in 

personnel files. For these cases we  are seeking alternative confirmation 

from line mangers to provide assurance over the validity of the payment. 

Further testing will be carried out at our accounts audit visit. 

Operating 
expenditure 

We tested a  initial sample of operating expenses from months 1 to 10 to ensure they 

are valid expenses and have been accurately accounted for in the correct period. 

Our work has not identified any issues that we wish to highlight for your 

attention.  

Housing benefit 
expenditure 

In our testing completed to date we have: 

• Confirmed the correct parameters have been entered into the housing benefit 

system 

• Tested a sample of benefit payments to confirm the accuracy of the payment by 

reference to evidence. 

Our work completed to date, has not identified any issues that we wish to 

highlight for your attention. Further testing will be carried out at our 

accounts audit visit. 

 

 

Income We have confirmed the receipt of significant grant income (revenue support grant and 

new homes bonus) to the Council's bank account. 

We have selected an initial sample of other income items (which excludes those from 

council tax or business rates) to confirm receipt to the Council's bank account. 

Our work has not identified any issues that we wish to highlight for your 

attention. Further testing will be carried out at our accounts audit visit. 

 

Assets We have verified a sample of the Council's property assets, to the deeds. Our work to date has not identified any issues that we wish to highlight 

for your attention.  

Opening 
balances 

We have confirmed that the opening balances brought into the general ledger for 
2015/16 are in agreement with the audited balance sheet for 2014/15. 

No matters to bring to your attention. 

We have carried out some substantive testing at this early stage of  the audit 
and this will be extended at the accounts audit. 

P
age 17



Audit Committee progress report and emerging issues and developments – High Peak Borough Council 

10 © 2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved. 

Value for Money 
Background 

The Local Audit & Accountability Act 2014 ('the Act') and the NAO Code of Audit 
Practice ('the Code') require us to issue a conclusion on whether the Council has put 
in place proper arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in 
its use of resources. This is known as the Value for Money (VfM) conclusion.  

The National Audit Office (NAO) issued its guidance for auditors on value for 
money work in November 2015. 

The Act and the NAO guidance state that auditors are only required to report by 
exception where they are not satisfied that NHS bodies have proper arrangements in 
place to secure value for money. However, we are required to carry out sufficient 
work to satisfy ourselves that proper arrangements are in place at the Council. 

The guidance identifies one single criterion for auditors to evaluate:  

In all significant respects, the audited body had proper arrangements to ensure it took properly 
informed decisions and deployed resources to achieve planned and sustainable outcomes for taxpayers 
and local people.  

This is supported by three sub-criteria as set out  in the table to the right. 

Sub-criteria Detail 

Informed decision 

making 

• Acting in the public interest, through demonstrating and applying the 

principles and values of good governance 

• Understanding and using appropriate cost and performance 

information to support informed decision making and performance 

management 

• Reliable and timely financial reporting that supports the delivery of 

strategic priorities 

• Managing risks effectively and maintaining a sound system of 

internal control. 

Sustainable 

resource 

deployment 

• Planning finances effectively to support the sustainable delivery of 

strategic priorities and maintain statutory functions 

• Managing assets effectively to support the delivery of strategic 

priorities 

• Planning, organising and developing the workforce effectively to 

deliver strategic priorities. 

Working with 

partners and other 

third parties 

• Working with third parties effectively to deliver strategic priorities 

• Commissioning services effectively to support the delivery of 

strategic priorities 

• Procuring supplies and services effectively to support the delivery 

of strategic priorities. 

Risk assessment 

We completed an initial risk assessment based on the NAO's guidance. In our initial 
risk assessment, we considered: 

• our cumulative knowledge of the Council, including work performed in previous 
years in respect of the VfM conclusion and the opinion on the financial 
statements 

• illustrative significant risks identified and communicated by the NAO in its 
Supporting Information 

• any other evidence which we consider necessary to conclude on your 
arrangements 

 

We have identified significant risks which we are required to communicate to you. The 

NAO's Code of Audit Practice defines ‘significant’ as follows:  

A matter is significant if, in the auditor’s professional view, it is reasonable to conclude that 

the matter would be of interest to the audited body or the wider public. Significance has 

both qualitative and quantitative aspects.  

P
age 18



Audit Committee progress report and emerging issues and developments – High Peak Borough Council 

11 © 2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved. 

Value for money 
We set out below the significant risks we have identified as a result of  our initial risk assessment and the work we 

propose to address these risks. 

 

Significant risk Link to sub-criteria Work proposed to address 

The Council has historically managed its finances well and 

has consistently achieved savings targets. It is on course to 

achieve a balanced budget for 2015/16. However, following 

the most recent settlement, and with the expected reduction 

in government grant, the Council has identified deficits in the 

later years of the MTFP of 875,230 in 2018/19 and 

£406,450 in 2019/20 that will need to be met. Addressing 

this shortfall is dependent on funding that may arise from 

business rates retention or the impact of changes to New 

Homes Bonus. 

 

This links to the Council's arrangements for planning 

finances effectively to support the sustainable delivery of 

strategic priorities and using appropriate cost and 

performance information to support informed decision 

making. 

 

We propose to meet with key officers to discuss key strategic 

challenges and the Council's proposed response and consider 

reports to members to: 

• review the outturn position for 15/16 and the budget plans for 

16/17 and 17/18 

• review the Council's progress in updating its medium term 

financial strategy  

 

 

As the Council reaches the implementation stage of its 

service review process, the management of these changes 

represent  risk to the VFM conclusion. 

This links to the Council's arrangements for planning, 

organising and developing the workforce effectively to 

deliver strategic priorities and also to the arrangements  

and managing risks effectively and maintaining a sound 

system of internal control. 

 

We will discuss with key officers and review reports to  

consider:  

• what progress is being made to implement the service 

reviews  

• how the Council is addressing the risks and challenges 

associated with the changes in working arrangements 

• how the Council is dealing with the one off costs associated 

with the changes. 

 

Guidance note 

Red text is generic and should 

be updated specifically for your 

client. 

Once updated, change text 

colour back to black. 

Delete unused rows if there are 

no ‘other’ entity-specific risks. 

P
age 19



Audit Committee progress report and emerging issues and developments – High Peak Borough Council 

12 © 2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved. 

Value for money 

Significant risk Link to sub-criteria Work proposed to address 

 The Council's Business Plan for the housing revenue 

account, is affected by external factors including the recent 

government announcements of rent reductions that will 

need to be applied in future.  We need to consider the 

Council's arrangements to update its Business Plan in light 

of this and other developments throughout 2015/16, as this 

represents a risk to the VFM conclusion. 

 

This links to the Council's arrangements for utilising 

assets effectively to support the delivery of strategic 

priorities, and planning finances effectively to support the 

sustainable delivery of strategic priorities and maintain 

statutory functions. 

We will consider how the Council have responded to the 

developments that impact upon its HRA Business Plan through 

discussions with officers and review of key documents and 

reports to Members. 

Since 2000, High Peak Borough Council and Derbyshire 

County Council have been working on the Buxton Crescent 

& Thermal Spa Project to bring one of High Peak’s iconic 

buildings back into use as part of the heritage led 

regeneration of Buxton. The continued progress with the 

scheme and the risks to the Council associated with that 

continue to be of relevance to the VFM conclusion. 

This links to the Council's arrangements for utilising 

assets effectively to support the delivery of strategic 

priorities, and working with third parties effectively to 

deliver strategic priorities. 

We will discuss with key officers and review reports to  

consider:  

 

• what progress is being with the development 

• how the Council is addressing the risks and challenges 

associated with this 

• how the Council is dealing with the financial implications of 

the project. 

 

Guidance note 

Red text is generic and should 

be updated specifically for your 

client. 

Once updated, change text 

colour back to black. 

Delete unused rows if there are 

no ‘other’ entity-specific risks. 

P
age 20



Audit Committee progress report and emerging issues and developments – High Peak Borough Council 

13 © 2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved. 

Better Together:  
Building a successful joint venture company 

Local government is evolving as it 

looks for ways to protect front-line 

services. These changes are picking 

up pace as more councils introduce 

alternative delivery models to 

generate additional income and 

savings. 

'Better together' is the next report in our series looking at 

alternative delivery models and focuses on the key areas 

to consider when deciding to set up a joint venture (JV), 

setting it up and making it successful.  

 JVs have been in use for many years in local government 

and remain a common means of delivering services 

differently. This report draws on our research across a 

range of JVs to provide inspiring ideas from those that 

have been a success and the lessons learnt from those 

that have encountered challenges.  

Key findings from the report: 

• JVs continue to be a viable option – Where they have 

been successful they have supported councils to 

improve service delivery, reduce costs, bring 

investment and expertise and generate income 

• There is reason to be cautious – Our research found a 

number of JVs between public and private bodies had 

mixed success in achieving outcomes for councils 

• There is a new breed of JVs between public sector 

bodies – These JVs can be more successful at working 

and staying together. There are an increasing number 

being set up between councils and wholly-owned 

commercial subsidiaries that can provide both the 

commercialism required and the understanding of the 

public sector culture. 

Our report, Better Together: Building a successful joint 

venture company, can be downloaded from our website: 

http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/build

ing-a-successful-joint-venture-company/ 

 

Grant Thornton reports 

P
age 21

http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/building-a-successful-joint-venture-company/
http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/building-a-successful-joint-venture-company/
http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/building-a-successful-joint-venture-company/
http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/building-a-successful-joint-venture-company/
http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/building-a-successful-joint-venture-company/
http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/building-a-successful-joint-venture-company/
http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/building-a-successful-joint-venture-company/
http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/building-a-successful-joint-venture-company/
http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/building-a-successful-joint-venture-company/
http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/building-a-successful-joint-venture-company/
http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/building-a-successful-joint-venture-company/
http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/building-a-successful-joint-venture-company/
http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/building-a-successful-joint-venture-company/


Audit Committee progress report and emerging issues and developments – High Peak Borough Council 

14 © 2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved. 

Knowing the Ropes – Audit  
Committee Effectiveness Review  

We have published our first cross-sector review of  Audit 

Committee effectiveness encompassing the corporate, not 

for profit and public sectors.  

It provides insight into the ways in which audit committees can create an effective role 

within an organisation’s governance structure and understand how they are perceived 

more widely. The report is structured into four key issues: 

• What is the status of the audit committee within the organisation? 

• How should the audit committee be organised and operated? 

• What skills and qualities are required in the audit committee members? 

• How should the effectiveness of the audit committee be evaluated? 

 

The detailed report is available here 

http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/knowing-the-ropes--audit-committee-

effectiveness-review-2015/ 

 

Grant Thornton reports 

P
age 22

http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/knowing-the-ropes--audit-committee-effectiveness-review-2015/
http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/knowing-the-ropes--audit-committee-effectiveness-review-2015/
http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/knowing-the-ropes--audit-committee-effectiveness-review-2015/
http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/knowing-the-ropes--audit-committee-effectiveness-review-2015/
http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/knowing-the-ropes--audit-committee-effectiveness-review-2015/
http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/knowing-the-ropes--audit-committee-effectiveness-review-2015/
http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/knowing-the-ropes--audit-committee-effectiveness-review-2015/
http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/knowing-the-ropes--audit-committee-effectiveness-review-2015/
http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/knowing-the-ropes--audit-committee-effectiveness-review-2015/
http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/knowing-the-ropes--audit-committee-effectiveness-review-2015/
http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/knowing-the-ropes--audit-committee-effectiveness-review-2015/
http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/knowing-the-ropes--audit-committee-effectiveness-review-2015/
http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/knowing-the-ropes--audit-committee-effectiveness-review-2015/
http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/knowing-the-ropes--audit-committee-effectiveness-review-2015/
http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/knowing-the-ropes--audit-committee-effectiveness-review-2015/
http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/knowing-the-ropes--audit-committee-effectiveness-review-2015/
http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/knowing-the-ropes--audit-committee-effectiveness-review-2015/


Audit Committee progress report and emerging issues and developments – High Peak Borough Council 

15 © 2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved. 

Fighting Fraud and Corruption Locally  

Fighting Fraud and Corruption 

Locally is a strategy for English local 

authorities that is the result of  

collaboration by local authorities and 

key stakeholders from across the 

counter fraud landscape . 

This strategy is the result of an intensive period of 

research, surveys, face-to-face meetings and workshops. 

Local authorities have spoken openly about risks, barriers 

and what they feel is required to help them improve and 

continue the fight against fraud and to tackle corruption 

locally. 

Local authorities face a significant fraud challenge. Fraud 

costs local authorities an estimated £2.1bn a year. In 

addition to the scale of losses, there are further 

challenges arising from changes in the wider public 

sector landscape including budget reductions, service 

remodelling and integration, and government policy 

changes. Local authorities will need to work with new 

agencies in a new national counter fraud landscape. 

The strategy: 

• calls upon local authorities to continue to tackle fraud 

with the dedication they have shown so far and to 

step up the fight against fraud in a challenging and 

rapidly changing environment 

• illustrates the financial benefits that can accrue from 

fighting fraud more effectively 

• calls upon central government to promote counter 

fraud activity in local authorities by ensuring the right 

further financial incentives are in place and helping 

them break down barriers to improvement 

• updates and builds upon Fighting Fraud Locally 2011 

in the light of developments such as The Serious and 

Organised Crime Strategy and the first UK Anti-

Corruption Plan 

• sets out a new strategic approach that is designed to 

feed into other areas of counter fraud and corruption 

work and support and strengthen the ability of the 

wider public sector to protect itself from the harm 

that fraud can cause. 

The strategy can be downloaded from 

http://www.cipfa.org/services/counter-fraud-

centre/fighting-fraud-and-corruption-locally 

 

CIPFA publication 

P
age 23

http://www.cipfa.org/services/counter-fraud-centre/fighting-fraud-and-corruption-locally
http://www.cipfa.org/services/counter-fraud-centre/fighting-fraud-and-corruption-locally
http://www.cipfa.org/services/counter-fraud-centre/fighting-fraud-and-corruption-locally
http://www.cipfa.org/services/counter-fraud-centre/fighting-fraud-and-corruption-locally
http://www.cipfa.org/services/counter-fraud-centre/fighting-fraud-and-corruption-locally
http://www.cipfa.org/services/counter-fraud-centre/fighting-fraud-and-corruption-locally
http://www.cipfa.org/services/counter-fraud-centre/fighting-fraud-and-corruption-locally
http://www.cipfa.org/services/counter-fraud-centre/fighting-fraud-and-corruption-locally
http://www.cipfa.org/services/counter-fraud-centre/fighting-fraud-and-corruption-locally
http://www.cipfa.org/services/counter-fraud-centre/fighting-fraud-and-corruption-locally
http://www.cipfa.org/services/counter-fraud-centre/fighting-fraud-and-corruption-locally
http://www.cipfa.org/services/counter-fraud-centre/fighting-fraud-and-corruption-locally
http://www.cipfa.org/services/counter-fraud-centre/fighting-fraud-and-corruption-locally
http://www.cipfa.org/services/counter-fraud-centre/fighting-fraud-and-corruption-locally
http://www.cipfa.org/services/counter-fraud-centre/fighting-fraud-and-corruption-locally


GRT102468 

P
age 24



 
 

Chartered Accountants 
Member firm within Grant Thornton International Ltd 
Grant Thornton UK LLP is a limited liability partnership registered in England and Wales: No.OC307742. Registered office: Grant Thornton House, Melton Street, Euston Square, London NW1 2EP 
A list of members is available from our registered office. 
 
Grant Thornton UK LLP is authorised and regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority. 

 
 

Simon Baker 
Chief Executive 
High Peak Borough Council 
Town Hall 
Buxton 
Derbyshire 
SK17 6EL 

11 April 2016 

Dear Simon  

Planned audit fee for 2016/17 – High Peak Borough Council 

The Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 provides for the introduction of a new 
framework for local public audit. Under these provisions, the Audit Commission closed in 
March 2015 and the Secretary of State for Communities and Local Government delegated 
some statutory functions from the Audit Commission Act 1998 to Public Sector Audit 
Appointments Limited (PSAA) on a transitional basis. 

PSAA will oversee the Commission's audit contracts for local government bodies until they 
end in 2018, following the announcement by the Department for Communities and Local 
Government (DCLG) that it will extend transitional arrangements until 2017/18. PSAA's 
responsibilities include setting fees, appointing auditors and monitoring the quality of 
auditors' work. Further information on PSAA and its responsibilities are available on the 
PSAA website. 

Scale fee 

PSAA prescribes that 'scale fees are based on the expectation that audited bodies are able to 
provide the auditor with complete and materially accurate financial statements, with 
supporting working papers, within agreed timescales'.  

There are no planned changes to the overall work programme for local government audited 
bodies for 2016/17, bar the adoption of new measurement requirements for the Highways 
Network Asset.  

CIPFA/LASAAC is expected to confirm, subject to consultation, that the 2016/17 Code of 
Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom will adopt the measurement 
requirements of the CIPFA Code of Practice on Highways Network Asset. 

PSAA have determined that there is no reliable and equitable way of establishing the volume 
of additional audit work, and therefore fees required, at each applicable local authority to gain 
assurance over the new financial reporting requirements. Therefore, fees for the additional 
work identified by auditors in 2016/17 will be subject to approval by PSAA under the normal 
fee variations process. PSAA expect that the additional fees for a highway authority will be in 
the range of £5,000 to £10,000, where authorities are able to provide the information 
required, and the auditor is able to rely on central assurance of the models in use. This is not 
expected to apply at High Peak Borough Council. 

Grant Thornton UK LLP 
Colmore Plaza 
20 Colmore Circus 
Birmingham 
B4 6AT 
 

T +44 (0)121 212 4000 
F +44 (0)121 212 4014 
DX 13174 Birmingham 
grant-thornton.co.uk 

 

 

Page 25

Agenda Item 5

http://www.psaa.co.uk/about-us/what-we-do/


 2 

PSAA have proposed that 2016/17 scale audit fees (excluding work completed on the 
Highways Network Asset) are set at the same level as the scale fees applicable for 2015/16. 
The Council's scale fee for 2016/17 has been set by PSAA at £47,273.    

The audit planning process for 2016/17, including the risk assessment, will continue as the 
year progresses and fees will be reviewed and updated as necessary as our work progresses.  

Scope of the audit fee 

Under the provisions of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014, the National Audit 

Office (NAO) is responsible for publishing the statutory Code of Audit Practice and 

guidance for auditors from April 2015. Audits of the accounts for 2016/17 will be undertaken 

under this Code, on the basis of the work programme and scale fees set out on the  PSAA 

website. Further information on the NAO Code and guidance is available on the NAO 

website. 

 

The scale fee covers: 

 our audit of your financial statements 

 our work to reach a conclusion on the economy, efficiency and effectiveness in your use of 
resources (the value for money conclusion) 

 our work on your whole of government accounts return (if applicable). 
 
As outlined above, the fee for any additional work in respect of the Highways Network Asset 
is not included in this fee however we do not anticipate that additional work will be required 
at High Peak Borough Council. 

PSAA will agree fees for considering objections from the point at which auditors accept an 
objection as valid, or any special investigations, as a variation to the scale fee. 

 

Value for Money conclusion 

The Code requires us to consider whether the Council has put in place proper arrangements 
for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources. This is known as 
the Value for Money (VfM) conclusion. 
 
The NAO issued its guidance for auditors on value for money work in November 2015. The 
guidance states that for local government bodies, auditors are required to give a conclusion 
on whether the Council has put proper arrangements in place. 
 
The NAO guidance identifies one single criterion for auditors to evaluate: 
In all significant respects, the audited body takes properly informed decisions and deploys resources to achieve 
planned and sustainable outcomes for taxpayers and local people. 
 

Certification of grant claims and returns [if applicable] 

The Council's indicative grant certification fee has been set by PSAA at £11,040. This fee 
covers the cost of certifying the housing benefit subsidy claim only and is based on final 
2014/15 certification fees. 

The indicative fee for certification work is based on the expectation that you provide the 
auditor with complete and materially accurate claims and returns, with supporting working 
papers, within agreed timeframes. 

Page 26

http://www.psaa.co.uk/wp-content/uploads/2015/10/Proposed-work-programme-and-scales-of-fees-consultation-for-local-government-and-police-bodies1.pdf
http://www.psaa.co.uk/wp-content/uploads/2015/10/Proposed-work-programme-and-scales-of-fees-consultation-for-local-government-and-police-bodies1.pdf
https://www.nao.org.uk/code-audit-practice/
https://www.nao.org.uk/code-audit-practice/


 3 

Assurance engagements for other schemes will be subject to separate arrangements and fees 
agreed between the grant-paying body, the Council and ourselves 

Billing schedule 

Fees will be billed as follows: 
 
 
 

 

Outline audit timetable 

We will undertake our audit planning and interim audit procedures in December to March. 

Upon completion of this phase of our work we will issue a detailed audit plan setting out our 

findings and details of our audit approach. Our final accounts audit and work on the VfM 

conclusion will be completed in July. 

 

Phase of work Timing Outputs Comments 

Audit planning 
and interim audit 

November 2016 
– March 2017 

Audit plan The plan summarises the 
findings of our audit 
planning and our approach 
to the audit of the 
Council's accounts and 
VfM. 

Final accounts 
audit 

June – July 2017 Audit Findings 
(Report to those 
charged with 
governance) 

This report sets out the 
findings of our accounts 
audit and VfM work for 
the consideration of those 
charged with governance. 

VfM conclusion January – July 
2017 

Audit Findings 
(Report to those 
charged with 
governance) 

As above 

Whole of 
government 
accounts 

August 2017 Assurance Statement 
WGA return 

The Council's return is 
expected to be below the 
audit threshold. 

Annual audit letter September 2017 Annual audit letter to 
the Council 

The letter will summarise 
the findings of all aspects 
of our work. 

Grant certification June - 
November 2017 

Grant certification 
report 

A report summarising the 
findings of our grant 
certification work 

 

Main Audit fee £ 

September 2016 11,818.25 

December 2016 11,818.25 

March 2017 11,818.25 

June 2017 11,818.25 

Total 47,273.00 

Grant Certification  

March 2017 11,040.00 

Page 27



 4 

Our team 

The key members of the audit team for 2016/17 are:  

 Name Phone Number E-mail 

Engagement Lead Phil Jones 
 

0121 232 5232 phil.w.jones@uk.gt.com 

Engagement 
Manager 

Allison Rhodes 
Ashley Wilson 

0121 232 5285 
0121 232 5430 

allison.rhodes@uk.gt.com 
ashley.l.wilson@uk.gt.com 

In Charge Auditor Emma Cable 0121 232 5153 emma.cable@uk.gt.com 
 

    

 

Additional work 

The scale fee excludes any work requested by the Council that we may agree to undertake 
outside of our Code audit.  Each additional piece of work will be separately agreed and a 
detailed project specification and fee agreed with the Council. 

Quality assurance 

We are committed to providing you with a high quality service.  If you are in any way 
dissatisfied, or would like to discuss how we can improve our service, please contact me in 
the first instance. Alternatively you may wish to contact Mark Stocks, our Public Sector 
Assurance regional lead partner, mark.c.stocks@uk.gt.com. 
 
Yours sincerely 

 

 
Phil Jones 

Engagement Lead 
For Grant Thornton UK LLP 

 

 

Page 28

mailto:phil.w.jones@uk.gt.com
mailto:allison.rhodes@uk.gt.com
mailto:emma.cable@uk.gt.com


6.1 
 

AGENDA ITEM  6 
 

HIGH PEAK BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

Report to the Audit & Regulatory Committee 
 

25th May 2016 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Appendices Attached:  
Appendix 1 Audit Reports Issued Between 1st February 2016 and 30th April 2016 
Appendix 2 Internal Audit 2015/16 Progress Information as at 30th April 2016 
Appendix 3 2014/15 Audit Recommendations Implementation 
 
 
1.        Reason for the Report: 
 
1.1 The Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 requires the Council to “undertake 

an effective internal audit to evaluate the effectiveness of its risk management, 
control and governance processes, taking into account public sector internal 
auditing standards or guidance”. In accordance with the Public Sector Internal 
Audit Standards, the Audit Manager must report periodically to the Audit 
Committee on the internal audit activity’s performance relative to its plan. 

 
 
2. Recommendation 

2.1 That Councillors note the progress information contained within this report. 
 

 
3. Executive Summary 
 
3.1 The purpose of this report is to summarise current year performance 

information for the Council’s Internal Audit service for the 2015/16 financial 
year. This includes a breakdown of audits in progress and completed to date, 
the number and classification of recommendations made, agreed and where 
applicable, implemented by management. 

 
3.2 All audit recommendations have been agreed, and to date 96% of 2015/16 

audit recommendations that are due have been implemented. Where 

TITLE: 2015/16 Internal Audit Periodic Report 
February 2016 to April 2016 

 
EXECUTIVE COUNCILLOR: Councillor Emily Thrane – Executive  
    Councillor for Finance & Corporate Services 
 
CONTACT OFFICER:  John Leak – Internal Audit Manager 
   
WARDS INVOLVED:  Non-Specific 

Page 29

Agenda Item 6



6.2 
 

deficiencies in internal control have been identified and not corrected, Internal 
Audit are satisfied that they will be resolved in an appropriate manner and they 
will continue to monitor such cases. It should be noted that it is the 
responsibility of relevant Managers to implement agreed recommendations. 
 
 

4. How this report links to Corporate Priorities  
 
4.1 The assurance provided by the work of Internal Audit informs the Annual 

Governance Statement and therefore helps to confirm effective use of 
financial and other resources to ensure value for money. 

 
 
5. Options and Analysis 
 
5.1 There are no options to consider. 

 
 
6. Implications 
 

6.1
  

Community Safety - (Crime and Disorder Act 1998) 
None 
 

6.2 Workforce 
None 
 

6.3 Equality and Diversity/Equality Impact Assessment 
This report has been prepared in accordance with the Council's 
Diversity and Equality Policies. 
 

6.4 Financial Considerations 
None 
 

6.5 Legal 
None 
 

6.6 Sustainability 
None 
 

6.7 
 
 
 

Internal and External Consultation 
None 

6.8 
 
 
 

Risk Assessment 
None 
 

ANDREW P STOKES 
Executive Director (Transformation) & Chief Finance Officer 

 
 

Page 30



6.3 
 

Web Links and 
Background Papers 

Location Contact details 

None N/A John Leak 
Audit Manager 
Tel: (01538) 395695 
e-mail: john.leak@staffsmoorlands.gov.uk 

 
7. Background and Detail 
 

7.1 Introduction 
 
7.1.1 The purpose of this report is to summarise current year performance 

information for the Council’s Internal Audit service for the 2015/16 
financial year. This includes a breakdown of audits in progress and 
completed to date, the number and classification of recommendations 
made, agreed and where applicable, implemented by management. 

 
7.1.2 The work of the internal audit service is primarily based upon an annual 

risk assessed audit plan, which for the financial year 2015/16 was 
agreed by this Committee at the 2nd June 2015 meeting. The Internal 
Audit service also carry out work outside of the audit plan for which a 
contingency is usually built in. This unplanned work consists mainly of 
internal control consultancy work and special investigations into 
suspected fraud and irregularity. 

 
7.2 Audits Reports Issued & Status of Agreed Recommendations 
 
7.2.1 A summary of the Audit Reports issued during the period 1st February 

2016 to 30 April 2016 is shown in the table below. Further details of 
these audits outlining key issues and strengths and improvements are 
shown in Appendix 1. 

 
Service Audit Recommendations Assurance 

High  
Risk 

Medium 
Risk 

Low  
Risk 

Visitor 
Services 

Pavilion 
Gardens 
TIC/Shop/ 
Gallery 

0 6 11 Limited 

Finance & 
Procurement 

Procurement 0 3 9 Satisfactory 

Regeneration Regeneration 0 1 4 Satisfactory 

Customer 
Services 

Carelink 0 1 7 Satisfactory 

Finance & 
Procurement 

Payroll 0 1 11 Satisfactory 

Finance & 
Procurement 

Sundry 
Debtors 

0 0 4 Satisfactory 

Finance & 
Procurement 

Recovery 0 1 9 Satisfactory 

Page 31

mailto:john.leak@staffsmoorlands.gov.uk


6.4 
 

Finance & 
Procurement 

Creditor 
Payments 

0 3 4 Satisfactory 

Customer 
Services 

Housing 
Strategy 

0 0 2 Satisfactory 

 
7.2.2 A further breakdown of all of the audits in progress and completed 

during the current financial year including the current status of audit 
recommendations is detailed in Appendix 2.  All audit 
recommendations have been agreed, and to date 96% of 2015/16 audit 
recommendations that are due have been implemented. Where 
deficiencies in internal control have been identified and not corrected, 
Internal Audit are satisfied that they will be resolved in an appropriate 
manner and they will continue to monitor such cases. It should be noted 
that it is the responsibility of relevant Managers to implement agreed 
recommendations. 

 
7.2.3 Councillors will note that in addition to every individual audit 

recommendation being allocated a risk, every audit completed has 
been given an ‘assurance opinion’ based upon Internal Audit’s 
assessment of the internal control environment. These assurance 
opinions inform the annual audit opinion on the overall adequacy and 
effectiveness of the Council’s internal control environment. The control 
levels are defined as follows: 

  
Control 
Level 

Definition 

Substantial There is a robust framework of controls designed to achieve 
the objectives and controls are consistently applied. 

Satisfactory There is a sufficient framework of controls which for the 
most part, are consistently applied.  However, weakness in 
the design or inconsistent application of controls within a 
few areas put achievement of particular objectives at risk. 

Limited Weaknesses in the system or the level of non compliance 
with controls in a number of areas are such to put the 
system objectives at risk. 

Unsatisfactory There is a significant breakdown in the framework of 
controls, which leaves the system open to significant abuse 
or error. 

 
7.2.4 Appendix 3 is a summary of recommendations made in the previous 

financial year 2014/15 implemented to date. This information will keep 
Councillors informed of progress made to ensure that all previous year 
audit recommendations are implemented. Due dates for implementation 
of some previous year recommendations will fall into 2015/16 and 
beyond depending on when the audit was carried out so this appendix 
will show when those recommendations become due for 
implementation. In due course, all recommendations will fall due and it 
will be possible to clearly identify which recommendations have not 
been implemented. 

 

Page 32



6.5 
 

7.2.5 To date 98% of 2014/15 audit recommendations that are due have 
been implemented. Where deficiencies in internal control have been 
identified and not corrected, Internal Audit are satisfied that they will be 
resolved in an appropriate manner and they will continue to monitor 
such cases.  It should be noted that it is the responsibility of relevant 
Managers to implement agreed recommendations. 

 
7.3 Audits In Progress 

 
7.3.1 The status of audits that are currently in progress is shown in the table 

below. 
 

Service Audit Status 

Finance & 
Procurement 

Insurance Audit complete. Management response. 

Finance & 
Procurement 

General 
Ledger 

Audit complete. Quality control stage. 

Democratic & 
Community 
Services 

Peak District 
Partnership 

Audit complete. Quality control stage. 

Finance & 
Procurement 

NNDR Audit complete. Quality control stage. 

Finance & 
Procurement 

Council Tax Audit complete. Quality control stage. 

Assets Capital 
Contract 
Management 

Audit in Progress. 

Assets Housing 
Planned 
Maintenance 

Audit in Progress. 

Customer 
Services 

Housing 
Benefits 

Audit in Progress. 

Customer 
Services 

One-Stop 
Shops 

Audit in Progress. 

 
 

7.4 Progress against Audit Plan 
7.4.1 The 2015/16 financial year has seen steady progress against planned 

audits and all of the audits in progress or nearing completion as 
detailed in 7.3 above will be completed soon. A satisfactory year end 
position will therefore be achieved. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 33



6.6 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7.4.2 Current key progress information is summarised in the following table, 

excluding unplanned work unless otherwise stated: 
 

Summary Progress Information to 30th April 2016 
Percentage of Audit Plan completed / substantially 
completed 

81% 

Percentage of Audit Plan In Progress 11% 

Number of recommendations made (including unplanned 
work) 

196 

Percentage of recommendations agreed with Service 
Managers (including unplanned work) 

100% 

Percentage of recommendations implemented within 
agreed timescale (including unplanned work) 

96% 

 
7.4.3 Should recommendations have not been agreed, compensating 

controls exist or service managers have accepted the risk / inefficiency 
of the current system for the benefit of service delivery. 

 

Page 34



APPENDIX 1 

6.7 
 

AUDIT REPORTS ISSUED BETWEEN 1st FEBRUARY 2016 & 
30th APRIL 2016 

 
 
Pavilion Gardens – TIC/Shop/Gallery 
 
Assurance Level 
 
Assurance: LIMITED 
It is our opinion that controls currently in place within the system provide limited assurance that 
risks material to the achievement of the systems objectives are adequately managed. 
 
 
Key Findings 
 
Key Issues Strengths and Improvements 
• The cash collection contract should be 

complied with to ensure that insurance 
limits are not breached. 

• The Stocklink system should be kept up-to 
date in order to provide accurate 
management information. 

• Stock takes should be carried out regularly, 
and robust stocktake records should be 
completed and maintained. 

• Any variances identified during stocktakes 
over a predetermined limit should be 
adequately investigated and documented. 

• Options for making the ordering process 
more efficient, whilst ensuring compliance 
with the Procurement Procedure Rules, 
should be discussed with the Finance & 
Procurement Service, agreed and 
implemented. 

• Tills are now accessed via individual swipe 
card. 

• The Pavilion Gardens receive on-site 
support from Finance one day per week, to 
ensure that invoices are processed 
efficiently. 

• The Pavilion Gardens has a Business Plan 
in place, which is reviewed annually. 
 

 
 
Summary of Recommendations 
 
An analysis of the recommendations categorised by risk and classification (regulatory or added 
value) is shown below:  
 
Description High Medium Low 

R A R A R A 
Insurance Limits   1    
Till Voids     1  
High Peak Artists     1 1 
Stock Control   4  3  
Procurement   1  1  
Visit Peak District & Derbyshire     1  
Ticket Sales     1  
Financial Information       2 
Total   6  8 3 

Page 35



APPENDIX 1 

6.8 
 

Procurement 
 
Assurance Level 
 
Assurance: SATISFACTORY 
It is our opinion that controls currently in place within the system provide satisfactory assurance 
that risks material to the achievement of the systems objectives are adequately managed. 
 
 
Key Findings 
 
Key Issues Strengths and Improvements 
• Purchasing cards should be held securely 

and used only in accordance with the terms 
and conditions of issue. 

• All purchasing card expenditure should be 
supported by appropriate documented 
evidence and subject to regular approval by 
an authorised person.  

• The certification of invoices not 
automatically matched within E-series 
should be appropriately controlled. 

• Implementation of the Bravo E-Tendering 
System. 

• Increased involvement of the Procurement 
section in the purchasing process e.g use 
of webforms. 
 

 
 
Summary of Recommendations 
 
An analysis of the recommendations categorised by risk and classification (regulatory or added 
value) is shown below:  
 
Description High Medium Low 

R A R A R A 
Ordering     1  
Purchasing Cards   2  2  
Access to Information     2 1 
E-Series   1    
Contract/Non-Contract Spend      2 
Submission of Tenders     1  
Total   3  6 3 

Page 36



APPENDIX 1 

6.9 
 

Regeneration 
 
Assurance Level 
 
Assurance: SATISFACTORY 
It is our opinion that controls currently in place within the system provide satisfactory assurance 
that risks material to the achievement of the systems objectives are adequately managed. 
 
 
Key Findings 
 
Key Issues Strengths and Improvements 
• The agreement for the provision of Project 

Management Services for the 
redevelopment of Buxton Thermal Spa and 
Crescent should be amended to reflect the 
extension to the project scope and price 
that were discussed in April 2014.  Such 
amendments should be formally signed as 
accepted by all parties. 

• The Alliance Project Methodology 
processes are being rolled out to all 
Regeneration projects which will ensure that 
standard documents are compiled. 

• A record of key development sites has been 
produced which is subject to regular review 
by both the Growth Projects Steering Group 
and Transformation Board. 

• Project roles and responsibilities have been 
established for each project. 

 
 
Summary of Recommendations 
 
An analysis of the recommendations categorised by risk and classification (regulatory or added 
value) is shown below:  
 
Description High Medium Low 

R A R A R A 
Project Risks     1  
Monitoring of Projects     2 1 
Procurement   1    
Total   1  3 1 
 

Page 37



APPENDIX 1 

6.10 
 

Carelink – Self Funding Clients 
 
Assurance Level 
 
Assurance: SATISFACTORY 
It is our opinion that controls currently in place within the system provide satisfactory assurance 
that risks material to the achievement of the systems objectives are adequately managed. 
 
 
Key Findings 
 
Key Issues Strengths and Improvements 
• Adequate procedures should be developed 

between the Recovery and Carelink service 
with regard to the raising and recovery of 
Carelink debts, thereby ensuring sufficient 
information is available to both parties to 
enable debt to be promptly recovered and 
reduce the risk of further debt accruing. 

• Charges for the service have recently been 
reviewed to ensure they are set at a 
reasonable level while taking account of the 
costs of providing the service. 

• The Carelink service is adequately 
promoted. 

• The number of complaints received are 
minimal and all are dealt with in accordance 
with the corporate procedure. 

 
 
Summary of Recommendations 
 
An analysis of the recommendations categorised by risk and classification (regulatory or added 
value) is shown below:  
 
Description High Medium Low 

R A R A R A 
Terms and Conditions     1  
Fees and Charges     1  
Raising of Debtor Accounts     3 1 
Recovery of Debt   1    
Installation / Sign up Process      1 
Total   1  5 2 
 

Page 38



APPENDIX 1 

6.11 
 

Payroll 
 
Assurance Level 
 
Assurance: SATISFACTORY 
It is our opinion that controls currently in place within the system provide satisfactory assurance 
that risks material to the achievement of the systems objectives are adequately managed. 
 
 
Key Findings 
 
Key Issues Strengths and Improvements 
• A documented reconciliation between the 

SAP Establishment and the HR and 
Member Services Establishment lists 
should be undertaken on a regular basis, 
with any variances being adequately 
investigated. 
 

• The establishment is updated and amended 
independently of the payroll staff. 

• The reconciliation of the payroll data to 
Integra is completely independent of the 
payroll staff. 
 

 
 
Summary of Recommendations 
 
An analysis of the recommendations categorised by risk and classification (regulatory or added 
value) is shown below:  
 
Description High Medium Low 

R A R A R A 
Establishment   1  1 1 
Management Reporting       1 
Access Rights     1  
Payroll Reconciliation     2  
Overtime     3 1 
Exception Reports     1  
Total   1  8 3 
 

Page 39



APPENDIX 1 

6.12 
 

Sundry Debtors 
 
Assurance Level 
 
Assurance: SATISFACTORY 
It is our opinion that controls currently in place within the system provide satisfactory assurance 
that risks material to the achievement of the systems objectives are adequately managed. 
 
 
Key Findings 
 
Key Issues Strengths and Improvements 
 • The cash suspense account is being 

cleared on a timely basis. 
• The Sales Ledger is reconciled to the 

Nominal Ledger on a regular basis. 
 
 
Summary of Recommendations 
 
An analysis of the recommendations categorised by risk and classification (regulatory or added 
value) is shown below:  
 
Description High Medium Low 

R A R A R A 
Debtor Invoices     1 2 
Reconciliation of Paris to Integra     1  
Total     2 2 
 

Page 40



APPENDIX 1 

6.13 
 

Recovery 
 
Assurance Level 
 
Assurance: SATISFACTORY 
It is our opinion that controls currently in place within the system provide satisfactory assurance 
that risks material to the achievement of the systems objectives are adequately managed. 
 
 
Key Findings 
 
Key Issues Strengths and Improvements 
• All outstanding debtor accounts should be 

regularly reviewed to ensure that 
appropriate recovery action is being 
undertaken in accordance with Financial 
Procedure Rules. 

• Monthly arrears reports are now provided to 
all Service Areas giving details of all debts.   

• Suppressed accounts are regularly 
reviewed. 

• The monitoring of special arrangements is 
automated, with automatic reminders raised 
if a debtor defaults on the arrangement. 

 
 
Summary of Recommendations 
 
An analysis of the recommendations categorised by risk and classification (regulatory or added 
value) is shown below:  
 
Description High Medium Low 

R A R A R A 
Policies & Procedures     1  
Sundry Debtor Recovery   1  1  
Local Taxation Recovery     1  
Write offs     6  
Total   1  9  
 

Page 41



APPENDIX 1 

6.14 
 

Creditor Payments 
 
Assurance Level 
 
Assurance: SATISFACTORY 
It is our opinion that controls currently in place within the system provide satisfactory assurance 
that risks material to the achievement of the systems objectives are adequately managed. 
 
 
Key Findings 
 
Key Issues Strengths and Improvements 
• Controls should be implemented to 

eliminate the risk of making a duplicate 
payment to a supplier. 

• Controls should be implemented to ensure 
that supplier invoices are processed onto 
the correct supplier code and to ensure that 
photocopied invoices are not processed. 

• A process should be implemented to 
ensure that any variances between the job 
cost amount and the actual spend amount 
on OHMS is investigated further to identify 
the reasons why. 

• One Joint Alliance Team dealing with all 
invoices received for both HPBC and 
SMDC. 

• Payments made via the purchase ledger 
are regularly reconciled to the nominal 
ledger Creditors control account. 

 
 
Summary of Recommendations 
 
An analysis of the recommendations categorised by risk and classification (regulatory or added 
value) is shown below:  
 
Description High Medium Low 

R A R A R A 
Invoice Processing   3  2  
Energy Bills     1  
Management Information      1 
Total   3  3 1 
 

Page 42



APPENDIX 1 

6.15 
 

Housing Strategy 
 
Assurance Level 
 
Assurance: SATISFACTORY 
It is our opinion that controls currently in place within the system provide satisfactory assurance 
that risks material to the achievement of the systems objectives are adequately managed. 
 
 
Key Findings 
 
Key Issues Strengths and Improvements 
 • Performance indicators continue to be 

appropriately monitored and reported. 
 
 
Summary of Recommendations 
 
An analysis of the recommendations categorised by risk and classification (regulatory or added 
value) is shown below:  
 
Description High Medium Low 

R A R A R A 
Housing Strategy      1 
Right to Buy Receipts     1  
Total     1 1 
 
  
 

Page 43



APPENDIX 2 

6.16 
 

HIGH PEAK BOROUGH COUNCIL INTERNAL AUDIT – 2015/16 PROGRESS INFORMATION AS AT 30th APRIL 2016 
AUDIT TOTAL 

RECOMMENDATIONS 
HIGH RISK 

RECOMMENDATIONS 
MEDIUM RISK 

RECOMMENDATIONS 
LOW RISK 

RECOMMENDATIONS 
ASSURANCE OPINION / 

COMMENTS 

 Regulatory Added 
value 

Agreed / (Not 
Agreed) 

Due to 
date 

Actioned 
to date 

Agreed / (Not 
Agreed) 

Due to 
date 

Actioned 
to date 

Agreed / (Not 
Agreed) 

Due to 
date 

Actioned 
to date  

Housing Rents 6 0 0  0 0 3  2 0 3  1 1 Satisfactory 
Health & Safety 5 0 0  0 0 3  2 2 2  2 2 Satisfactory 
Transparency Agenda 12 1 0  0 0 9  5 5 4  2 2 Limited 
Leasing 4 0 0  0 0 3  0 0 1  0 0 Limited 
Safeguarding Children & VA 6 1 0  0 0 3  1 1 4  4 4 Satisfactory 
Markets 7 0 0  0 0 2  0 0 5  0 0 Satisfactory 
Elections 11 4 0  0 0 3  3 3 12  3 3 Satisfactory 
VAT 4 1 0  0 0 0  0 0 5  3 3 Satisfactory 
Waste Collection 4 1 0  0 0 0  0 0 5  4 4 Satisfactory 
Development Control 5 1 0  0 0 3  0 0 3  0 0 Satisfactory 
Enforcement 19 4 0  0 0 3  3 3 20  1 1 Satisfactory 
Env Health Licensing 6 2 0  0 0 1  1 1 7  4 4 Satisfactory 
Pavilion Gardens TIC/Shop/Gallery 14 3 0  0 0 6  0 0 11  0 0 Limited 
ICT Asset Management 6 0 0  0 0 3  1 1 3  2 2 Satisfactory 
Housing Agency 3 1 0  0 0 1  0 0 3  0 0 Satisfactory 
Insurance               Management Response 
General Ledger               Quality Control Stage 
Peak District Partnership               Quality Control Stage 
Treasury Management 3 0 0  0 0 0  0 0 3  0 0 Satisfactory 
Procurement 9 3 0  0 0 3  0 0 9  1 1 Satisfactory 
Budgetary Control 2 0 0  0 0 0  0 0 2  1 1 Substantial 
Regeneration 4 1 0  0 0 1  0 0 4  2 2 Satisfactory 
Carelink 6 2 0  0 0 1  0 0 7  1 1 Satisfactory 
Payroll 9 3 0  0 0 1  0 0 11  1 1 Satisfactory 
Sundry Debtors 2 2 0  0 0 0  0 0 4  0 0 Satisfactory 
Recovery 10 0 0  0 0 1  0 0 9  0 0 Satisfactory 
Creditor Payments 6 1 0  0 0 3  0 0 4  0 0 Satisfactory 
Housing Strategy 1 1 0  0 0 0  0 0 2  0 0 Satisfactory 
NNDR               Quality Control Stage 
Council Tax               Quality Control Stage 
Capital Contract Management               Audit in Progress 
Housing Planned Maintenance               Audit in Progress 
Housing Benefits               Audit in Progress 
One Stop Shops               Audit in Progress 

                
TOTAL RECOMMENDATIONS 196 0    53    143     
ACTION TAKEN TO DATE  0 0  18 16  32 32  

Key: 
Risk   Class  
High Significant control weakness / inefficiency exists with a high likelihood of occurring, potentially 

causing a breach of legislation / legal requirements and/or a substantial loss or damage to Council 
assets, information and reputation.  Considered essential to implement recommendation promptly. 

 Regulatory To ensure the integrity of internal controls and/or compliance with Regulations / 
Policies and Procedures.  

     
Medium Control weakness / inefficiency exists with a moderate likelihood of occurring, potentially causing a 

breach of organisational policies and procedures, loss or damage to Council assets, information 
and reputation.  Considered essential to implement recommendation to ensure adequate system 
controls / necessary improvement in service provision. 

 Added 
Value 

Intended as an enhancement to the existing system which may provide a benefit 
to either the user or the customer. 

P
age 44



APPENDIX 2 

6.17 
 

     
Low Minor control weakness / inefficiency exists with a minimal impact on the Council assets, 

information and reputation.  Considered necessary to implement recommendation to provide 
management with additional assurance regarding the adequacy of system controls / improvement 
in service provision. 

   

 

P
age 45



APPENDIX 3 

6.18 
 

HIGH PEAK BOROUGH COUNCIL INTERNAL AUDIT – 2014/15 AUDIT RECOMMENDATIONS IMPLEMENTATION 
AUDIT TOTAL 

RECOMMENDATIONS 
HIGH RISK 

RECOMMENDATIONS 
MEDIUM RISK 

RECOMMENDATIONS 
LOW RISK 

RECOMMENDATIONS 
ASSURANCE OPINION / 

COMMENTS 

 Regulatory Added 
value 

Agreed / (Not 
Agreed) 

Due to 
date 

Actioned 
to date 

Agreed / (Not 
Agreed) 

Due to 
date 

Actioned 
to date 

Agreed / (Not 
Agreed) 

Due to 
date 

Actioned 
to date  

Housing Rents 8 1 0  0 0 3  3 3 6  6 6 Satisfactory 
Councillors Initiative Fund 4 0 0  0 0 0  0 0 4  4 4 Satisfactory 
Leisure Contract Management 7 2 0  0 0 3  2 2 5 (1) 5 5 Satisfactory 
Cemeteries 15 2 0  0 0 3  3 3 13 (1) 13 13 Satisfactory 
Bacstel-IP 7 0 0  0 0 2  2 2 5  5 5 Satisfactory 
Housing Advice 3 0 0  0 0 1  1 1 2  2 2 Satisfactory 
Fleet Management 8 3 0  0 0 3  3 3 8  8 8 Satisfactory 
Emer.Planning / Business Continuity 8 2 0  0 0 3  1 1 7  6 6 Satisfactory 
Noise Pollution Control 7 1 0  0 0 0  0 0 7 (1) 7 7 Satisfactory 
Horticulture 14 3 0  0 0 4  4 4 12 (1) 10 10 Limited 
Corporate Governance 5 3 0  0 0 0  0 0 8  8 8 Satisfactory 
Human Resources 13 5 0  0 0 2  2 2 16  16 16 Satisfactory 
Housing Tenancy Allocation 3 0 0  0 0 0  0 0 3  2 2 Substantial 
Assets & Facilities 12 1 0  0 0 6  2 2 7  3 3 Limited 
Customer Contact 7 2 0  0 0 1  1 0 8  8 6 Satisfactory 
Land Charges 9 3 0  0 0 3  3 3 9  9 9 Satisfactory 
Pavilion Gardens 9 3 0  0 0 3  2 2 9  7 6 Satisfactory 
Development Control S.106 5 3 0  0 0 1  0 0 7  2 2 Satisfactory 
Treasury Management 5 0 0  0 0 0  0 0 5  5 5 Satisfactory 
General Ledger 7 0 0  0 0 1  1 1 6  6 6 Satisfactory 
Housing Stock Management 4 0 0  0 0 2  0 0 2  0 0 Satisfactory 
Housing Strategy 10 0 0  0 0 3  3 3 7  7 7 Satisfactory 
Pest Control 12 7 0  0 0 1  1 1 16 (2) 13 13 Satisfactory 
Budgetary Control 1 0 0  0 0 0  0 0 1  1 1 Substantial 
Sundry Debtors 3 0 0  0 0 0  0 0 3  3 3 Satisfactory 
Creditor Payments 2 0 0  0 0 0  0 0 2  2 2 Substantial 
Partnerships 4 0 0  0 0 2  0 0 2  0 0 Satisfactory 
Housing Planned Maintenance 8 0 0  0 0 3  3 3 5  5 5 Satisfactory 
ICT Governance 7 0 0  0 0 2  2 2 5  4 4 Satisfactory 
Payroll 5 0 0  0 0 2  2 2 3  3 3 Satisfactory 
NNDR 9 1 0  0 0 3  3 3 7  7 7 Satisfactory 
Council Tax 6 0 0  0 0 1  1 1 4 (1) 3 3 Satisfactory 
Recovery 8 2 0  0 0 1  1 1 9  9 9 Satisfactory 
Housing Benefits 4 1 0  0 0 4  4 4 1  1 1 Limited 

                
TOTAL RECOMMENDATIONS 284 0    63    214 (7)    
ACTION TAKEN TO DATE  0 0  50 49  190 187  
Key: 

Risk   Class  
High Significant control weakness / inefficiency exists with a high likelihood of occurring, potentially 

causing a breach of legislation / legal requirements and/or a substantial loss or damage to Council 
assets, information and reputation.  Considered essential to implement recommendation promptly. 

 Regulatory To ensure the integrity of internal controls and/or compliance with 
Regulations / Policies and Procedures.  

     
Medium Control weakness / inefficiency exists with a moderate likelihood of occurring, potentially causing a 

breach of organisational policies and procedures, loss or damage to Council assets, information 
and reputation.  Considered essential to implement recommendation to ensure adequate system 
controls / necessary improvement in service provision. 

 Added 
Value 

Intended as an enhancement to the existing system which may provide a 
benefit to either the user or the customer. 

P
age 46



APPENDIX 3 

6.19 
 

     
Low Minor control weakness / inefficiency exists with a minimal impact on the Council assets, 

information and reputation.  Considered necessary to implement recommendation to provide 
management with additional assurance regarding the adequacy of system controls / improvement 
in service provision. 

   

 

P
age 47



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 7.1 

AGENDA ITEM 7 
 

HIGH PEAK BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

Report to the Audit & Regulatory Committee 
 

25th May 2016 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Appendices Attached: 
Appendix 1 - High Peak BC / Staffordshire Moorlands DC Internal Audit – Audit 
Plan 2016/17 
 
 
1.        Reason for the Report: 
 
1.1 The Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 requires the Council to “undertake 

an effective internal audit to evaluate the effectiveness of its risk management, 
control and governance processes, taking into account public sector internal 
auditing standards or guidance”. In accordance with Public Sector Internal 
Audit Standards, the Audit Manager should establish a risk based audit plan to 
determine the priorities of the internal audit activity, consistent with the 
Council’s goals. The audit plan must be based on a documented risk 
assessment undertaken at least annually. 

 
 
2. Recommendation 

 
2.1 That the Committee approves the Council’s annual Internal Audit Plan for 

2016/17. 
 
 
3. Executive Summary 
 
3.1 The Public Sector Internal Audit Standards state that the Audit Plan must be 

based on a documented risk assessment undertaken at least annually and it 
needs to be flexible in response to changes in the Council’s business, risks, 
operations, programs, systems and controls. Furthermore, the Standard states 
that the Audit Manager must communicate the internal audit activity’s plans 
and resource requirements to senior management and the Audit Committee 
for review and approval. The Audit Manager must also communicate the 

TITLE:   Internal Audit Annual Audit Plan 2016/17 
 
EXECUTIVE COUNCILLOR Councillor Emily Thrane – Executive 
    Councillor for Finance & Corporate Services 
 
CONTACT OFFICER:  John Leak – Internal Audit Manager 
   
WARDS INVOLVED:  Non-Specific 

Page 49

Agenda Item 7



 7.2 

impact of resource limitations. This report seeks to address these 
requirements. 

 
3.2 The annual audit plan for 2016/17 has been created and is attached as 

Appendix 1. This involved a review of the risk scores in accordance with the 
Audit Service’s established risk assessment methodology to ensure that the 
most recent changes affecting risk are taken into account. The Internal Audit 
Plan is a joint Alliance plan designed to make the best use of Alliance 
resources and to reflect the nature of Council services. 
 

3.3 Should any amendments to the audit plan be necessary during the year, these 
will be reported to Councillors at future Audit & Regulatory Committee 
meetings. 
 
 

4. How this report links to Corporate Priorities  
 
4.1 The assurance provided by the work of Internal Audit informs the Annual 

Governance Statement and therefore helps to confirm effective use of 
financial and other resources to ensure value for money.  

 
 
5. Options and Analysis 
 
5.1 Approve the 2016/17 Audit Plan (Recommended). The Council will have an 

achievable risk based internal audit plan which is designed to provide 
assurance that the control environment is effective in achieving the Council’s 
objectives and is in accordance with Public Sector Internal Audit Standards, 
and therefore the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015. 
 

5.2 Do not approve the 2016/17 Audit Plan (Not Recommended). The Council will 
not be complying with the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 requirement 
to “undertake an effective internal audit to evaluate the effectiveness of its risk 
management, control and governance processes, taking into account public 
sector internal auditing standards or guidance”. 
 

 
6. Implications 
 

6.1
  

Community Safety - (Crime and Disorder Act 1998) 
None 
 

6.2 Workforce 
None 
 

6.3 Equality and Diversity/Equality Impact Assessment 
This report has been prepared in accordance with the Council's 
Diversity and Equality Policies. 
 

6.4 Financial Considerations 
None 

Page 50



 7.3 

 
6.5 Legal 

None 
 

6.6 Sustainability 
None 
 

6.7 
 
 

Internal and External Consultation 
None 

6.8 
 
 
 

Risk Assessment 
The annual audit plan has been prepared in accordance with the 
Internal Audit Service’s established risk assessment methodology. 
 

 
 

ANDREW P STOKES 
Executive Director (Transformation) & Chief Finance Officer 

 
 
Web Links and 
Background Papers 

Location Contact details 

None N/A John Leak 
Audit Services Manager 
Tel: (01538) 395695 
e-mail: john.leak@staffsmoorlands.gov.uk 

 
 
7. Background and Detail 
 
7.1 The audit plan must be based on a documented risk assessment undertaken 

at least annually, in accordance with the requirements of the Public Sector 
Internal Audit Standards. However the audit plan needs to be flexible to be 
able to reflect the changing risks and priorities of the Council so the entire 
scope of audits will receive ongoing consideration and attention to ensure that 
appropriate audit coverage is achieved. 

 
7.2 The Audit Plan has been developed using a comprehensive risk assessment 

framework which is designed to assess all areas of the Council’s services and 
thereby examine and evaluate the whole system of internal controls (both 
financial and non-financial) established by management. This risk assessment 
allows the Audit Plan to be focused, concentrating resources on the areas of 
greatest need and where there will be the best use of audit resources. The 
work is designed to appraise and review: 

 
• the completeness, reliability and integrity of information, both financial and 

operational; 
• the systems established to ensure compliance with policies, plans, 

procedures, laws and regulations, i.e. rules established by the 
management of the Council, or externally; 

• the means of safeguarding assets; 

Page 51

mailto:john.leak@staffsmoorlands.gov.uk


 7.4 

• the economy, efficiency and effectiveness with which resources are 
employed, and whether operations are being carried out as planned and 
objectives and goals are being met. 

 
7.3 The risk based planning methodology utilised to prepare the audit plan 

assesses each system on eight risk elements: 
 

• Monetary / financial value; 
• Volume of transactions; 
• System factors – stability / type of processing application / complexity of 

regulations and / or processing; 
• Managerial and control environment / previous assurance; 
• Incidence / risk of fraud; 
• Sensitivity; 
• Corporate risks; and 
• Time since previous audit. 

 
This approach is linked to a mapping exercise whereby corporate risks are 
mapped to the Audit Plan to ensure they are adequately considered during the 
audit lifecycle. 

 
7.4 The annual audit plan for 2016/17 has been created and is attached as 

Appendix 1. As the Internal Audit service is a joint resource across both 
Alliance Councils, and all Alliance services are joint, the most efficient method 
of auditing to take advantage of economies of scale is to undertake audits 
covering both Alliance Councils. However there will still be occasions when 
audits only cover one of the Alliance Councils and this is reflected within the 
Audit Plan. The future audit approach to potential challenges to the internal 
control environment that may result from the ongoing development of services 
will need to be adapted as transformation progresses. 
 

7.5 It is planned to supplement the annual audit plan during 2016/17 with the 
purchase of a specialist ICT audit resource to focus on technical ICT risks. As 
a result of a reduction in internal staff resource during 2015/16, a small budget 
has been made available for this work which will consist of an initial needs 
assessment to facilitate the prioritisation of future ICT audits and these will 
then be planned and undertaken during 2016/17 and future years utilising 
available budget(s). 

 

Page 52



7.5 
 

APPENDIX 1 
HIGH PEAK BC / STAFFORDSHIRE MOORLANDS DC 

INTERNAL AUDIT – AUDIT PLAN 2016/17 
 

AUDIT SMDC HPBC ALLIANCE TOTAL 
Key Financial Systems     

ICT-BACSTel-IP   10 10 
Budgetary Control   10 10 
Capital Accounting   10 10 
Council Tax   15 15 
Creditor Payments   10 10 
Housing Benefits   20 20 
Housing Rents  15  15 
General Ledger   10 10 
Non-Domestic Rates   15 15 
Payroll   15 15 
Recovery   15 15 
Sundry Debtors   15 15 
Treasury Management   10 10 
TOTAL – KEY FINANCIAL SYSTEMS 0 15 155 170 

Areas identified within Corporate Risks     

Assets & Facilities   15 15 
ICT-Data Protection/Info Governance   15 15 
Housing Strategy   15 15 
Housing Stock Management  15  15 
Human Resources   15 15 
Planning Policy   15 15 
TOTAL – CORPORATE RISKS 0 15 75 90 

Areas identified by Internal Audit     

Banking Contract   10 10 
CCTV   10 10 
Commercial Property   15 15 
Corporate Governance   15 15 
Customer Services   15 15 
Food Safety   10 10 
Grounds Maintenance   10 10 
Housing Repairs & Maintenance 

 

 15  15 
Housing Right to Buy  10  10 
Housing Tenancy Allocation   15 15 
Licensing   15 15 
Member Services   15 15 
Parking   15 15 
Pavilion Gardens  15  15 
Performance Management   10 10 
Risk Management   10 10 
ICT-Social Media   10 10 
Sports Development   10 10 
Street Cleansing   15 15 
Tourism   15 15 
TOTAL – AREAS IDENTIFIED BY IA 0 40 215 255 

Page 53



7.6 
 

     
TOTAL PLANNED DAYS 0 70 445 515 

 

Page 54



 8.1 

AGENDA ITEM 8 
 

HIGH PEAK BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

Report to the Audit & Regulatory Committee 
 

25th May 2016 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Appendices Attached: 
Appendix 1 - Whistleblowing Policy 
 
1.        Reason for the Report: 
 
1.1 The Public Interest Disclosure Act 1998 gives protection to “whistleblowers” 

that raise concerns about serious fraud or malpractice at their place of work 
against victimisation or dismissal, provided they have acted in a responsible 
way in dealing with their concerns. In support of this, the Council actively 
promotes its Whistleblowing Policy to ensure all relevant parties are aware of it 
and of how and when to use it. 

 
 
2. Recommendation 

 
2.1 That the revised Whistleblowing Policy attached at Appendix 1 be approved 

and adopted. 
 
2.2 That the committee note the activity outlined in this report, aimed at promoting 

the Whistleblowing Policy within High Peak Borough Council. 
 

 
3. Executive Summary 
 
3.1 High Peak Borough Council’s Whistleblowing Policy has been in place since 

2002 and has been periodically updated, the last time in March 2008. It allows 
all employees and contractors to report any concerns where the public interest 
is at risk, which includes a risk to the wider public, customers, staff or the 
Council itself. As such, it promotes and supports the requirements of the 
Public Interest Disclosure Act 1998. 

 
3.2 HPBC reviews all of its policies on a regular basis to ensure they are fit for 

TITLE:   Whistleblowing Policy 
 
EXECUTIVE COUNCILLOR Councillor Emily Thrane – Executive 
    Councillor for Finance & Corporate Services 
 
CONTACT OFFICER:  John Leak – Internal Audit Manager 
   
WARDS INVOLVED:  Non-Specific 

Page 55

Agenda Item 8



 8.2 

purpose and where appropriate, are continually improving. Previous actions 
aimed at publicising the Whistleblowing Policy and improving the Council’s 
processes have helped to facilitate a strong culture of disclosure, one that 
promotes the appropriate use of whistleblowing which has been confirmed by 
positive responses to staff surveys. 
 

3.3 Since March 2008, there have been no whistleblowing cases reported. 
 

3.4 The Council’s alliance partner, Staffordshire Moorlands District Council 
currently has a separate Whistleblowing Policy. An alliance-wide 
Whistleblowing Policy has therefore been created to promote a consistent 
approach to disclosure of concerns.  

 
3.5 The updated Policy, which is attached at Appendix 1, incorporates the latest 

legislative changes introduced by the Enterprise and Regulatory Reform Act 
2013 with regard to the public interest test and good faith and vicarious 
liability. 
 

3.5 Following approval of the revised policy, further awareness raising initiatives 
will be scheduled to ensure whistleblowing continues to be appropriately 
publicised. 
 
 

4. How this report links to Corporate Priorities  
 
4.1 The Council aims to maintain a high performing and well motivated workforce. 

In support of this, the Council actively promotes its Whistleblowing Policy.  
 
 
5. Options and Analysis 
 
5.1 Approve the Whistleblowing Policy (Recommended). The Council will have a 

Whistleblowing Policy based on best practice and current legislation which 
promotes and supports the requirements of the Public Interest Disclosure Act 
1998. 
 

5.2 Do not approve the Whistleblowing Policy (Not Recommended). The Council 
will not have an up-to date Whistleblowing Policy based on current best 
practice and legislation. 

 
 
6. Implications 
 

6.1
  

Community Safety - (Crime and Disorder Act 1998) 
None 
 

6.2 Workforce 
It is essential that all employees are aware of the Whistleblowing Policy 
and how they can make use of it. 
 
 

Page 56



 8.3 

6.3 Equality and Diversity/Equality Impact Assessment 
This report has been prepared in accordance with the Council's 
Diversity and Equality Policies. 
 

6.4 Financial Considerations 
None 
 

6.5 Legal 
The Public Interest Disclosure Act 1998 states that employees and 
contractors must be allowed to make ‘protected disclosures’ should 
they witness any malpractice or similar within the workplace. The 
Whistleblowing Policy enables them to do this. 
 

6.6 Sustainability 
None 
 

6.7 
 
 

Internal and External Consultation 
None 

6.8 
 

Risk Assessment 
None 
 

 
ANDREW P STOKES 

Executive Director (Transformation) & Chief Finance Officer 
 
 
Web Links and 
Background Papers 

Location Contact details 

Public Interest Disclosure 
Act 1998 
 
Public Concern At Work 
Compliance Toolkit 2015 

Moorlands House John Leak 
Audit Services Manager 
Tel: (01538) 395695 
e-mail: john.leak@staffsmoorlands.gov.uk 

 

Page 57

mailto:john.leak@staffsmoorlands.gov.uk


 8.4 

7. Background and Detail 
 
7.1    High Peak Borough Council’s Whistleblowing Policy (Appendix 1) has been in 

place since 2002 and has been periodically updated, the last time in March 
2008. It allows all employees and contractors to report any concerns where 
the public interest is at risk, which includes a risk to the wider public, 
customers, staff or the Council itself. As such, it promotes and supports the 
requirements of the Public Interest Disclosure Act 1998. 

 
7.2 The Council aims to maintain a high performing and well motivated workforce. 

In support of this, the Council actively promotes its Whistleblowing Policy to 
ensure all relevant parties are aware of it and how and when to use it. 

 
7.3 Previous actions aimed at publicising the Whistleblowing Policy and improving 

the Council’s processes have helped to facilitate a strong culture of disclosure, 
one that promotes the appropriate use of whistleblowing which has been 
confirmed by positive responses to staff surveys. These actions have 
included: 

 
• The inclusion of the Whistleblowing Policy in the induction process for new 

members of staff;  
• Articles in previous Alliance Newsletters and Alliance Online 

communications to raise staff awareness; and 
• Whistleblowing awareness posters placed on noticeboards throughout the 

Council’s buildings. 
 
7.4 There have been no whistleblowing cases reported since the previous policy 

update in March 2008. 
 

7.5 The Council’s alliance partner, Staffordshire Moorlands District Council 
currently has a separate Whistleblowing Policy. An alliance-wide 
Whistleblowing Policy has therefore been created to promote a consistent 
approach to disclosure of concerns.  

 
7.6 The updated policy is based on best practice supplied by the whistleblowing 

charity and leading authority in the field ‘Public Concern At Work’, to whom the 
Council subscribes. It incorporates the latest legislative changes introduced by 
the Enterprise and Regulatory Reform Act 2013 with regard to the public 
interest test and good faith and vicarious liability. 
 

7.6 Following the approval of the policy, further awareness raising initiatives will 
be scheduled to ensure whistleblowing continues to be appropriately 
publicised. These will include: 
 
• Inclusion on a future meeting of the Joint Consultative Committee; 
• An article will be included in the Alliance Online for staff and thereafter 

periodically; 
• New whistleblowing posters will be placed on noticeboards throughout the 

Council; 
• Practical tips will be given to all managers and supervisors to help them 

deal with any whistleblowing issues raised by their staff; and 

Page 58



 8.5 

• Specific whistleblowing communication to all staff to help raise awareness 
of the importance of discussing with their line managers any concerns they 
may have regarding malpractice. 

 

Page 59



8.6 
 

APPENDIX 1 
 

 
 
 

Staffordshire Moorlands District Council & 
High Peak Borough Council 
WHISTLEBLOWING POLICY  

 
 
 

INTRODUCTION 
 
All of us at one time or another have a concern about what is happening at work. Usually these 
are easily resolved. However, when the concern feels serious because it is about a possible 
fraud, danger or malpractice that might affect others or the organisation itself, it can be 
difficult to know what to do. 
 
You may be worried about raising such a concern and may think it best to keep it to yourself, 
perhaps feeling it’s none of your business or that it’s only a suspicion. You may feel that raising 
the matter would be disloyal to colleagues, managers or to the organisation. You may decide to 
say something but find that you have spoken to the wrong person or raised the issue in the 
wrong way and are not sure what to do next. 
 
The Cabinet / Executive and Chief Executive of the Council are committed to running the 
organisation in the best way possible and to do so we need your help. We have introduced this 
policy to reassure you that it is safe and acceptable to speak up and to enable you to raise any 
concern you may have about malpractice at an early stage and in the right way. Rather than 
wait for proof, we would prefer you to raise the matter when it is still a concern.   
 
This policy promotes and supports the requirements of the Public Interest Disclosure Act 1998. 
It applies to all those who work for us; whether full-time or part-time, contractors, employed 
through an agency or as a volunteer. If you have a whistleblowing concern, please let us know.   
 
If something is troubling you which you think we should know about or look into, please use 
this policy. If, however, you wish to make a complaint about your employment or how you 
have been treated, please use the Council’s Grievance Policy or Bullying and Harassment Policy 
available on the Intranet or from your manager or Human Resources Business Partner. If you 
have a concern about financial misconduct or fraud, please see the Council’s Anti-Fraud & 
Corruption Policy. This Whistleblowing Policy is primarily for concerns where the public interest 
is at risk, which includes a risk to the wider public, customers, staff or the organisation itself. 
 
If in doubt - raise it! 
 

Page 60

http://smdcintranet/serviceforms/WhistleBlowing.asp


8.7 
 

OUR ASSURANCES TO YOU 
 
Your safety 
 
The Cabinet / Executive and Chief Executive are committed to this policy. Provided you are 
raising a genuine concern, it does not matter if you are mistaken. Of course we do not extend 
this assurance to someone who maliciously raises a matter they know is untrue.   
 
If you raise a genuine concern under this policy, you will not be at risk of losing your job or 
suffering any form of reprisal as a result. We will not tolerate the harassment or victimisation 
of anyone raising a genuine concern and we consider it a disciplinary matter to victimise 
anyone who has raised a genuine concern. 
 
Your confidence 
 
With these assurances, we hope you will raise your concern openly. However, we recognise 
that there may be circumstances when you would prefer to speak to someone confidentially 
first. If this is the case, please say so at the outset. If you ask us not to disclose your identity, we 
will not do so without your consent unless required by law. You should understand that there 
may be times when we are unable to resolve a concern without revealing your identity, for 
example where your personal evidence is essential. In such cases, we will discuss with you 
whether and how the matter can best proceed. 
 
Please remember that if you do not tell us who you are (and therefore you are raising a 
concern anonymously) it will be much more difficult for us to look into the matter. We will not 
be able to protect your position or to give you feedback. Accordingly you should not assume 
we can provide the assurances we offer in the same way if you report a concern anonymously. 
 
If you are unsure about raising a concern you can get independent advice from Public Concern 
at Work (see contact details under Independent Advice). 
 
 

HOW TO RAISE A CONCERN INTERNALLY 
 
Please remember that you do not need to have firm evidence of malpractice before raising a 
concern. However we do ask that you explain as fully as you can the information or 
circumstances that gave rise to your concern. 
 
Step one 
If you have a concern about malpractice, we hope you will feel able to raise it first with your 
manager, supervisor or team leader.  This may be done verbally or in writing.   
 
Step two 
If you feel unable to raise the matter with your manager, for whatever reason, please raise the 
matter with the Audit Manager 01538 395695 or e-mail 
whistleblowing@staffsmoorlands.gov.uk  
 
 

Page 61

mailto:whistleblowing@staffsmoorlands.gov.uk


8.8 
 

If you want to raise the matter confidentially, please say so at the outset so that appropriate 
arrangements can be made. 
 
Step three 
If these channels have been followed and you still have concerns, or if you feel that the matter 
is so serious that you cannot discuss it with any of the above, please contact the Chief 
Executive or, if you feel the Chief Executive may be personally involved, the Leader of the 
Council.  
 
 

HOW WE WILL HANDLE THE MATTER 
 
We will acknowledge receipt of your concern within ten working days. We will assess it and 
consider what action may be appropriate.  This may involve an informal review, an internal 
inquiry or a more formal investigation.  We will tell you who will be handling the matter, how 
you can contact them, and what further assistance we may need from you.  If you ask, we will 
write to you summarising your concern and setting out how we propose to handle it and 
provide a timetable for feedback.  If we have misunderstood the concern or there is any 
information missing please let us know. 
 
When you raise the concern it will be helpful to know how you think the matter might best be 
resolved.  If you have any personal interest in the matter, we do ask that you tell us at the 
outset.  If we think your concern falls more properly within our Grievance, Bullying and 
Harassment or other relevant procedure, we will let you know. 
  
Whenever possible, we will give you feedback on the outcome of any investigation.  Please 
note, however, that we may not be able to tell you about the precise actions we take where 
this would infringe a duty of confidence we owe to another person. 
 
While we cannot guarantee that we will respond to all matters in the way that you might wish, 
we will strive to handle the matter fairly and properly.  By using this policy you will help us to 
achieve this. 
 
If at any stage you experience reprisal, harassment or victimisation for raising a genuine 
concern please contact a Human Resources Business Partner. 
 
 

INDEPENDENT ADVICE 
 
If you are unsure whether to use this policy or you want confidential advice at any stage, you 
may contact the independent charity Public Concern at Work on 020 7404 6609 or by email at 
helpline@pcaw.org.uk.  Their lawyers can talk you through your options and help you raise a 
concern about malpractice at work.   
 
You can also contact your union (where applicable) for advice. 
 
 
 

Page 62

mailto:helpline@pcaw.org.uk


8.9 
 

EXTERNAL CONTACTS 
 
While we hope this policy gives you the reassurance you need to raise your concern internally 
with us, we recognise that there may be circumstances where you can properly report a 
concern to an outside body.   In fact, we would rather you raised a matter with the appropriate 
regulator – such as the Health & Safety Executive, External Auditor or the Police - than not at 
all.   Public Concern at Work (or, if applicable, your union) will be able to advise you on such an 
option if you wish.    
 
 

MONITORING / OVERSIGHT 
 
The Audit Committee is responsible for this policy and will review it periodically.  A record will 
be maintained of all concerns raised together with the outcomes (but in a form which does not 
endanger your confidentiality) and will be reported as necessary to this Committee. 
 
 

IF YOU ARE DISSATISFIED 
 
While we cannot guarantee that we will respond to all matters in the way that you would wish, 
we will always endeavour to try to handle the matter fairly and properly.  By following the 
guidelines contained in this policy, you will help us to achieve this. Nevertheless, if you are 
unhappy with the Council’s response to the issue you’ve raised, you may wish to contact one of 
the other bodies detailed in this policy.   
 
 

ELECTED COUNCILLORS 
 
If an elected Councillor wishes to report any suspicions of malpractice, they should raise their 
concerns with the Chief Executive or, if the elected Councillor feels the Chief Executive may be 
personally involved, with an Executive Director. If the elected Councillor feels it would not be 
appropriate to raise with an Executive Director, then the issue should be raised with the Audit 
Manager 01538 395695 or e-mail whistleblowing@staffsmoorlands.gov.uk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 63

mailto:whistleblowing@staffsmoorlands.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



9.1 
 

AGENDA ITEM 9 
 

HIGH PEAK BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

Report to the Audit & Regulatory Committee 
 

25th May 2016 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Appendices Attached: 
None 
 
 
1.        Reason for the Report: 
 
1.1 This report summarises the changes to the arrangements for appointing 

External Auditors following the closure of the Audit Commission and the end of 
the transitional arrangements at the conclusion of the 2017/18 audits. The 
Council will need to consider the options available and put in place new 
arrangements in time to make a first appointment by 31st December 2017. 

 
 
2. Recommendation 

 
2.1 That Councillors note the decision to submit a non-binding expression of 

interest in opting-in to the Local Government Association (LGA) sector-led 
body approach to the procurement of future external audit contracts. 

 
2.2 That Councillors give delegated authority to the Chair of the Committee to 

make the formal decision to opt-in to the LGA’s SLB approach to the 
procurement of future external audit contracts. 
 
 

3. Executive Summary 
 
3.1 The Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 brought to a close the Audit 

Commission and established transitional arrangements for the appointment of 
external auditors and the setting of audit fees for all local government and 
NHS bodies in England. On 5th October 2015 the Secretary of State 

TITLE: LGA Sector-led Body for the Appointment of 
External Auditors Opt-in 

 
EXECUTIVE COUNCILLOR Councillor Emily Thrane – Executive 
    Councillor for Finance & Corporate Services 
 
CONTACT OFFICER: Andrew Stokes – Executive Director 

(Transformation) & Chief Finance Officer 
   
WARDS INVOLVED:  Non-Specific 

Page 65

Agenda Item 9



9.2 
 

Communities and Local Government (CLG) determined that the transitional 
arrangements for local government bodies would be extended by one year to 
also include the audit of the accounts for 2017/18. 

 
3.2 When the current transitional arrangements come to an end on 31st March 

2018 the Council will be able to move to local appointment of the auditor. 
There are three broad options open to the Council under the Local Audit and 
Accountability Act 2014 (the Act); to make a stand-alone appointment; set up 
a Joint Auditor Panel / local joint procurement arrangements; or opt-in to a 
sector led body. 

 
3.3 In response to the consultation on the new arrangement, the LGA successfully 

lobbied for Councils to be able to ‘opt-in’ to a Sector Led Body (SLB) 
appointed by the Secretary of State under the Act. An SLB would have the 
ability to negotiate contracts with the firms nationally, maximising the 
opportunities for the most economic and efficient approach to procurement of 
external audit on behalf of the whole sector. 

 
3.4 The LGA are working on developing a Sector Led Body and in order to the 

strengthen the LGA’s negotiating position and enable it to more accurately 
evaluate the offering, the Council was recently asked to consider whether it 
was interested in submitting a non-binding expression of interest in opting-in to 
a SLB. A formal decision to opt-in will be required at a later stage. 

 
3.5 Expressions of interest were requested by 30th April 2016. In order to meet 

this deadline, it was recommended to the Chair of this committee that the 
Council submit a non-binding expression of interest and this course of action 
was agreed and actioned. 
 
 

4. How this report links to Corporate Priorities  
 
4.1 The most economic and efficient approach to procurement of external audit 

contributes to the effective use of financial and other resources to ensure 
value for money.  

 
 
5. Options and Analysis 
 
5.1 There are no options to consider. 

 
 

6. Implications 
 

6.1
  

Community Safety - (Crime and Disorder Act 1998) 
None 
 

6.2 Workforce 
None 
 
 

Page 66



9.3 
 

6.3 Equality and Diversity/Equality Impact Assessment 
This report has been prepared in accordance with the Council's 
Diversity and Equality Policies. 
 

6.4 Financial Considerations 
Current external fees levels are likely to increase when the current 
contracts end in 2018. Opting-in to a national SLB provides maximum 
opportunity to limit the extent of any increases by entering in to a large 
scale collective procurement arrangement and would remove the costs 
of establishing an auditor panel. 
 

6.5 Legal 
Section 7 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 (the Act) 
requires a relevant authority to appoint a local auditor to audit its 
accounts for a financial year not later than 31 December in the 
preceding year. Section 8 governs the procedure for appointment 
including that the authority must consult and take account of the advice 
of its auditor panel on the selection and appointment of a local auditor. 
Section 8 provides that where a relevant authority is a local authority 
operating executive arrangements, the function of appointing a local 
auditor to audit its accounts is not the responsibility of an executive of 
the authority under those arrangements. 
 
Section 12 makes provision for the failure to appoint a local auditor: the 
authority must immediately inform the Secretary of State, who may 
direct the authority to appoint the auditor named in the direction or 
appoint a local auditor on behalf of the authority. 
 
Section 17 gives the Secretary of State the power to make regulations 
in relation to an ‘appointing person’ specified by the Secretary of State.  
This power has been exercised in the Local Audit (Appointing Person) 
Regulations 2015 (SI 192) and this gives the Secretary of State the 
ability to enable a Sector Led Body to become the appointing person. 
 

6.6 Sustainability 
None 
 

6.7 
 
 

Internal and External Consultation 
None 

6.8 
 
 
 

Risk Assessment 
There is no immediate risk to the Council, however, early consideration 
by the Council of its preferred approach will enable detailed planning to 
take place so as to achieve successful transition to the new 
arrangement in a timely and efficient manner. Providing the LGA with a 
realistic assessment of our likely way forward will enable the LGA to 
invest in developing appropriate arrangements to support the Council. 
 

 

Page 67



9.4 
 

ANDREW P STOKES 
Executive Director (Transformation) & Chief Finance Officer 

 
 
Web Links and 
Background Papers 

Location Contact details 

Local Audit and 
Accountability Act 2014 
 
LGA Letter to Chief 
Executive March 2016 

Moorlands House Andrew P Stokes 
Executive Director (Transformation) & Chief 
Finance Officer 
Tel: (01538) 395622 
e-mail: 
andrew.stokes@staffsmoorlands.gov.uk 

 
 
7. Background and Introduction 
 
7.1 The Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 brought to a close the Audit 

Commission and established transitional arrangements for the appointment of 
external auditors and the setting of audit fees for all local government and 
NHS bodies in England. On 5th October 2015 the Secretary of State 
Communities and Local Government (CLG) determined that the transitional 
arrangements for local government bodies would be extended by one year to 
also include the audit of the accounts for 2017/18. 

 
7.2 The Council’s current external auditor is Grant Thornton, this appointment 

having been made under a contract let by the Audit Commission. Following 
closure of the Audit Commission the contract is currently managed by Public 
Sector Audit Appointments Limited (PSAA), the transitional body set up by the 
Local Government Association (LGA) with delegated authority form the 
Secretary of State CLG. Over recent years the Council has benefited from 
reduction in fees in the order of 50% compared with historic levels. This has 
been the result of a combination of factors including new contracts negotiated 
nationally with the firms of accountants and savings from closure of the Audit 
Commission. 

 
7.3 When the current transitional arrangements come to an end on 31st March 

2018 the Council will be able to move to local appointment of the auditor. 
There are a number of routes by which this can be achieved, each with varying 
risks and opportunities. Current fees are based on discounted rates offered by 
the firms in return for substantial market share. When the contracts were last 
negotiated nationally by the Audit Commission they covered NHS and local 
government bodies and offered maximum economies of scale. 

 
7.4 The scope of the audit will still be specified nationally, the National Audit Office 

(NAO) is responsible for writing the Code of Audit Practice which all firms 
appointed to carry out the Council’s audit must follow. Not all accounting firms 
will be eligible to compete for the work, they will need to demonstrate that they 
have the required skills and experience and be registered with a registered 
supervising body approved by the Financial Reporting Council. The 
registration process has not yet commenced and so the number of firms is not 
known but it is reasonable to expect that the list of eligible firms may include 

Page 68

mailto:andrew.stokes@staffsmoorlands.gov.uk


9.5 
 

the top 10 or 12 firms in the country, including our current auditor. It is unlikely 
that small local independent firms will meet the eligibility criteria. 
 
 

8. Options for local appointment of External Auditors 
 

8.1 There are three broad options open to the Council under the Local Audit and 
Accountability Act 2014 (the Act): 
 
• Option 1 - To make a stand-alone appointment; 
• Option 2 - Set up a joint Auditor Panel / local joint procurement 

arrangements; 
• Option 3 - Opt-in to a sector led body. 
 
Option 1- Stand Alone Appointment 

 
8.2 In order to make a stand-alone appointment the Council will need to set up an 

Auditor Panel. The members of the panel must be wholly or a majority 
independent members as defined by the Act. Independent members for this 
purpose are independent appointees, this excludes current and former elected 
members (or officers) and their close families and friends. This means that 
elected members will not have a majority input to assessing bids and choosing 
which firm of accountants to award a contract for the Council’s external audit. 
A new independent auditor panel established by the Council will be 
responsible for selecting the auditor. 
 

8.3 Setting up an auditor panel allows the Council to take maximum advantage of 
the new local appointment regime and have local input to the decision. 
 

8.4 However, recruitment and servicing of the Auditor Panel, running the bidding 
exercise and negotiating the contract is estimated by the LGA to cost in the 
order of £15,000 plus on going expenses and allowances.  The Council will 
not be able to take advantage of reduced fees that may be available through 
joint or national procurement contracts and the assessment of bids and 
decision on awarding contracts will be taken by independent appointees and 
not solely by elected members. 
 
Option 2 – Joint Auditor Panel 
 

8.5 The Act enables the Council to join with other authorities to establish a joint 
auditor panel. Again this will need to be constituted of wholly or a majority of 
independent appointees (members). Further legal advice will be required on 
the exact constitution of such a panel having regard to the obligations of each 
Council under the Act and the Council need to liaise with other local 
authorities to assess the appetite for such an arrangement. 
 

8.6 The costs of setting up the panel, running the bidding exercise and negotiating 
the contract will be shared across a number of authorities and there is greater 
opportunity for negotiating some economies of scale by being able to offer a 
larger combined contract value to the firms. 
 

Page 69



9.6 
 

8.7 However, the decision making body will be further removed from local input, 
with potentially no input from elected members where a wholly independent 
auditor panel is used or possibly only one elected member representing each 
Council, depending on the constitution agreed with the other bodies involved. 
The choice of auditor could be complicated where individual Councils have 
independence issues. An independence issue occurs where the auditor has 
recently or is currently carrying out work such as consultancy or advisory work 
for the Council. Where this occurs some auditors may be prevented from 
being appointed by the terms of their professional standards. There is a risk 
that if the joint auditor panel choose a firm that is conflicted for this Council 
then the Council may still need to make a separate appointment with all the 
attendant costs and loss of economies possible through joint procurement. 
 
Option 3 – Sector Led Body 

 
8.8 In response to the consultation on the new arrangement the LGA successfully 

lobbied for Councils to be able to ‘opt-in’ to a Sector Led Body (SLB) 
appointed by the Secretary of State under the Act. An SLB would have the 
ability to negotiate contracts with the firms nationally, maximising the 
opportunities for the most economic and efficient approach to procurement of 
external audit on behalf of the whole sector. 
 

8.9 The costs of setting up the appointment arrangements and negotiating fees 
would be shared across all opt-in authorities and by offering large contract 
values the firms would be able to offer better rates and lower fees than are 
likely to result from local negotiation. Any conflicts at individual authorities 
would be managed by the SLB who would have a number of contracted firms 
to call upon. The appointment process would not be ceded to locally appointed 
independent members, instead a separate body is set up to act in the 
collective interests of the ‘opt-in’ authorities. The LGA are considering setting 
up such a body utilising the knowledge and experience acquired through the 
setting up of the transitional arrangements. 
 

8.10 However, individual elected members will have less opportunity for direct 
involvement in the appointment process other than through the LGA and/or 
stakeholder representative groups. In order for the SLB to be viable and to be 
placed in the strongest possible negotiating position the SLB will need 
Councils to indicate their intention to opt-in before final contract prices are 
known. 

 
 
9. Conclusion and Next Steps 
 
9.1 The Council have until December 2017 to make an appointment. In practical 

terms this means one of the options outlined in this report will need to be in 
place by spring 2017 in order that the contract negotiation process can be 
carried out during 2017. 
 

9.2 The LGA are working on developing a Sector Led Body. In a recent survey, 
58% of respondents expressed an interest in this option. Greatest economies 
of scale will come from the maximum number of councils acting collectively 

Page 70



9.7 
 

and opting-in to a SLB. In order to the strengthen the LGA’s negotiating 
position and enable it to more accurately evaluate the offering the Council was 
recently asked to consider whether it is interested in the option of opting in to a 
SLB. A formal decision to opt-in will be required at a later stage. 
 

9.3 The Council was asked by the LGA for an indication of the preferred approach 
in order that it can invest resources in providing appropriate support to 
Councils. The LGA is strongly supportive of the SLB approach as it believes 
this offers best value to Councils by reducing set-up costs and having to 
potential to negotiate lowest fees. 
 

9.4 Expressions of interest were requested by 30th April 2016. In order to meet 
this deadline, it was recommended to the Chair of this committee that the 
Council submit a non-binding expression of interest and this course of action 
was agreed and actioned. 
 

9.5 As this progresses and further details and costs of the SLB approach become 
available from the LGA, a formal decision to opt-in will be required. Based on 
a review of the available information at that time, it is requested that this 
committee gives delegated authority to the Chair of the Committee to make 
the formal decision, with subsequent notification to the Audit & Regulatory 
Committee. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 71



This page is intentionally left blank



10.1  

          
AGENDA ITEM 10  

 
HIGH PEAK BOROUGH COUNCIL 

 
Report to the Audit & Regulatory Committee 

 
25th May 2016 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Appendices attached: Appendix A – Revised Council and Committee  
    Procedure Rules 
 
 
1. Reason for the Report 
 
1.1 To present for the consideration of members of the Committee revised Council 

and Committee Procedure Rules as recommended by the Constitution Sub-
Committee. 

 
 
2. Recommendation 
 
2.1 That the Committee approves the proposed revised Council and Committee 

Procedure Rules. 
 
 
3. Executive Summary 
 
3.1 The Constitution Sub-Committee met on the 29th February 2016 to consider 

The Authority’s Council and Committee Procedure Rules which have not been 
reviewed as a whole for some time.  It is therefore considered appropriate to 
review this part of the Constitution.  The proposed alterations are shown by 
the tracked changes given in Appendix A to this report.  These include 
detailed provisions for the arrangement of extraordinary Council meetings and 
other consequential amendments (e.g. the legislative requirement for a 
recorded vote relating to the annual approval of the Council’s budget and 
Council Tax precept). 

TITLE:               Review of the Council and Committee 
  Procedure Rules 

EXECUTIVE COUNCILLOR: Councillor Emily Thrane – Finance &  
    Corporate Services 

OFFICER:    Linden Vernon – Senior Officer –  
  (Governance & Member Support) 

  
WARDS:   Non-Specific 

Page 73

Agenda Item 10



10.2  

 
 
4.       Options and Analysis 
 
4.1 The Committee may accept the revised procedure rules as proposed or make 

amendments. 
 
 

5. Implications 
 

5.1
  

Community Safety - (Crime and Disorder Act 1998) 
 
None. 
 

5.2 Workforce 
 
None. 
 

5.3 Equality and Diversity/Equality Impact Assessment 
 
None. 
 

5.4 Financial Considerations 
 
None. 
 

5.5 Legal 
 
The proposed changes ensure that the Council’s procedure rules 
continue to meet statutory requirements. 
 

5.6 Sustainability 
 
None. 
 

5.7 
 
 
 

Internal and External Consultation 
 
The report has been considered by the Council’s Constitution Sub-
Committee. 
 

5.8 
 
 
 

Risk Assessment 
 
Not applicable. 
 

 
 

Mark Trillo 
Executive Director (People) and Monitoring Officer 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 74



 10.3 

COUNCIL AND COMMITTEE PROCEDURE RULES 
 

 
 

1. Annual Meetings 
 
2. Election of Leader 

 
3.          Ordinary and Extraordinary Meetings  

 
4.          Quorum 

 
5.          Order of Business 

 
6.          Motions Requiring Notice  

 
7.          Motions Not Requiring Notice  

 
8.          Questions by Members  

 
9.          Questions by the Public 

 
10. Rules of Debate 

 
11. Closure Motions and Budget Motions  

 
12. Voting  

 
13. Disorderly Conduct  

 
14. Petitions  

 
15. Suspension and Variation 

 
16. Committees 

 
17. Declarations of Interest  

 
18. Interpretation and Applicability 

 

APPENDIX A 

Page 75



 10.4 

 
 

MEETINGS OF FULL COUNCIL 
 

1.The Annual Meeting of the Council will be held on the second Tuesday in 
May except in an election year when it may be held on any convenient 
date but shall be held no later than the end of May.  

2.1. The Annual Meeting of the Council shall be held –  
 

 (a)  in a year of ordinary elections of Councillors to the Council, on the 
eighth day after the day of retirement of Councillors or such other 
day within the twenty-one days immediately following the day of 
retirement as the Council may fix; 

 
 (b)  in any other year, on such day in the month of March, April or May 

as the Council may fix. 
 
3.2.  The Annual Meeting in a year offollowing the ordinary election of 

Councillors shall: 
 

(a) elect the Leader of the Council; 
(b) receive the Leader’s report on the appointment of Members to 

serve on the Executive and their respective portfolio 
responsibilities. 

 
3. The date of Ordinary meetings of the Council will be decided at the 

Council's Annual Meeting. These dates may be changed or meetings 
cancelled by the Monitoring Officer with the agreement of the Mayor and 
in consultation with the Leader of the Council.   

  
3.1 Those listed below may request the Proper Officer to call Extraordinary 

Council meetings in addition to ordinary meetings: 
   
 (a) the Council by resolution; 
 (b) the Mayor; 
 (c) The Leader of the Council 
 (d) the Head of Paid Service, 

(e) any five Members of the Council, if they have signed a requisition 
presented to the Mayor and he/she has declined to call a meeting 
or has failed to call a meeting within five working days of the 
presentation of the requisition.   The business to be transacted 
must be a matter where the Council has power or duties or which 
affects the Borough. 

 

Page 76



 10.5 

3.2 Any request made under Rule 3.1 shall specify the item or items of 
business for which the Extraordinary Meeting of the Council is to be 
called.  

 
3.3  The business to be conducted at an Extraordinary Meeting of the Council 

shall comprise: 
 

(a)  to choose a person to preside if the Mayor and Deputy Mayor are 
absent or otherwise unable to preside; 

(b)  to consider the matters to which the request made under Rule 3.2 
relates; 

  (c)   to consider other business (if any) specified in the Summons.  
  

3.4 The time and place of extraordinary meetings will be determined by the 
Proper Officer in consultation with the Mayor, taking into account the 
views of the Leader of this Council, and notified in the summons. 

 
4. Quorum If there are not at least 11 members present, the Mayor will 

adjourn the meeting to a specified time and date.  
 
5. The order of business at the Council will be as follows:  

 
(a) If necessary, the appointment to the Chairman  
(b) Apologies for absence 
(c) Declarations of Interests 
(d) Minutes of the previous meeting  
(e) Mayor’s announcements  
(f) Electors’ Questions 
(g) Members’ questions   
(h) Motions concerning the decisions of the Executive or a committee 
(i) Motions of which notice has been given  

 
No discussion will take place upon the minutes of the Council except 
upon their accuracy.  

 
The Mayor can re-order the agenda if he/she feels this would facilitate 
business and will sign the Minutes of the previous meeting at the next 
meeting. The agenda will be issued in accordance with the Council’s 
Access to Information Rules. 
 

6. A member may submit one Notice of Motion. The Leader may submit 
two. Notice must be given in writing, by fax or by electronic mail to the 
Monitoring Officer by 5 pm at least 10 clear working days (not including 
public holidays) before the meeting. The Monitoring Officer will record the 
date and time of receipt and this information will be open to inspection by 

Page 77



 10.6 

any person. The names of both the proposer and a seconder must be 
included in the Notice. 

 
Motions for which notice has been given will be listed in the agenda in the 
order in which they were received. The member who gave notice may 
withdraw it in writing.  
 
Motions must be about matters for which the Council has responsibility or 
which affect its area.  

 
7.     Notice shall not be required for motions 

 
(a) Concerning the election of the Mayor, the appointment of the 

Deputy Mayor or the appointment of a person to preside at the 
meeting, the accuracy of minutes of the Council, the order of 
business, or  

(b) Proposing appointments to decision making bodies, receipt of 
minutes and approval of any recommendations, amendments to 
motions, leave to withdraw motions, adjourning the meeting or 
exclusion of the public, or 

(c) Under Rule 10 (closure of debate), 12 (that a named member be 
not further heard) or 17 (suspension of the Rules).  

 
8.      Questions by Members  

 
8.1  If written notice by fax or electronic mail is given to the Monitoring Officer 

by 5.00 pm fourfive clear days (not including public holidays) before the 
Council Meeting, a member of the Council may ask the Leader of the 
Council, a member of the Executive or the Chairman of any Committee or 
Sub-Committee a question on any matter in relation to which the Council 
has powers or duties or which affects the Borough 

  
8.2 The question will be put and answered without discussion. 
 
8.3 Answers shall be in writing and circulated to all members of the Council. 
 
8.4 If the information is in a publication of the Council or other published work, 

a reference to that publication will be deemed a sufficient answer. 
 
8.5 A member asking a question under this Rule may ask one supplementary 

question without notice of the member to whom the first question was 
asked. The supplementary question must arise directly out of the original 
question or the reply.  

 
9.  Questions by the Public  
 

Page 78



 10.7 

 General  
 
9.1  Members of the public who are on the register of electors for High Peak 

may ask questions of members of the Executive at ordinary meetings of 
the Council. The maximum period of time for questions by the public at a 
Council Meeting shall be 15 minutes. This may be extended at the 
Mayor’s discretion. 

 
 Order of Questions  
 
9.2  Questions will be asked in the order in which they were receivednotice of 

them was received, except that the Mayor may group together similar 
questions.  

 
 

Notice of Questions  
 

9.3  A question may only be asked if notice has been given in writing or by fax 
or electronic mail to the Monitoring Officer no later than 5.00 pm five clear 
working days before the Council Meeting.  The notice must give the name 
and address of the questioner and the name of the member of the Council 
to whom the question is to be put.  

 
Number of Questions  

 
9.4  At any one meeting no person may submit more than one question, and 

no more than one question may be asked on behalf of one organisation.  
 

Scope of Questions  
 

9.5  The Monitoring Officer may reject a question if it is not about a matter for 
which the Council has a responsibility, or which does not affect the 
Borough; is defamatory, frivolous or offensive; is substantially the same as 
a question which has been put at a meeting of the Council in the past six 
months; or requires the disclosure of confidential or exempt information.  

 
Asking the Question at the Meeting 

 
9.6  The Mayor will invite the questioner to put the question to the member 

named in the notice. If the questioner who has submitted a written 
question is unable to be present, he/she may ask the Mayor to put the 
question on his/her behalf. In the absence of the questioner, the Mayor 
may ask the question on the questioner’s behalf, indicate that a written 
reply will be given, or decide that the question will not be dealt with.  

 
Supplementary Question  

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.32 cm,
Hanging:  0.95 cm

Page 79



 10.8 

 
9.7  A questioner who has put a question in person may also put one 

supplementary question without notice to the member who has replied to 
his/her original question. A supplementary question must arise directly out 
of the original question or the reply. The Mayor may reject a 
supplementary question on any of the grounds set out above.  

 
 
 

Written Answers  
 

9.8  Any questions not answered at the end of the time allocated for questions 
by the public will be answered in writing. Any question that cannot be dealt 
with during public question time because of the non-attendance of the 
member to whom it was to be put, will be dealt with by a written answer.  

 
 

Reference of Question to the Executive or a Committee  
 
9.9  Unless the Mayor decides otherwise, no discussion will take place on any 

question.  A, but any member may move that a matter raised by a 
question be referred to the Executive or the appropriate Committee or 
Sub-Committee for further consideration. Once seconded, such a motion 
will be voted upon without discussion.  

 
Record of Questions  

 
9.10  The Monitoring Officer will keep a record, open to public inspection, of all 

public questions received and will immediately send a copy of the question 
to the member to whom it is to be put.  

 
Rejected questions will include reasons for the rejection. Copies of all 
questions will be circulated to all members and will be made available to 
the public attending the meeting. The Monitoring Officer will be 
responsible for sending to the questioner a copy of the answer provided at 
the Council Meeting as soon as practicable after the Council Meeting. 

 
10.  Rules of Debate  
 
10.1  Members shall stand when speaking and address the Mayor, unless 

otherwise directed by the Mayor.  
 
10.2  Whenever the Mayor stands all members shall sit and the Council shall be 

silent.  
 

Page 80



 10.9 

10.3  If two or more Members wish to speak the Mayor shall call each one to 
speak in turn ordinarily giving the other(s) a later opportunity to speak.  

 
10.4  A motion or amendment shall not be discussed unless it has been 

proposed and seconded.  
 
10.5  The proposer of a motion may alter it with the consent of the Council 

which may be inferred without a vote. 
 
10.6  When a motion is under debate no other motion shall be moved except 

one of the motions specified in Rule 76 (Motions for which no notice is 
required).  

 
10.7  No speech may exceed five minutes except with the consent of the Mayor.  
 
10.8  A member may speak again on a point of order or in personal explanation. 

A point of order shall relate only to an alleged breach of a Rule or statutory 
provision and the member must specify the nature of the breach. A 
personal explanation shall be confined to a relevant earlier statement that 
has been misunderstood.  

 
10.9  The proposer and seconder of the motion have a right of reply at the close 

of the debate on the motion or on any amendment. Any other member 
may only speak a second time in a debate under Rule 11 (closure 
motions) or with the permission of the Mayor.  

 
10.10 An amendment shall be relevant to the motion and shall not merely negate 

or be negative to it. It shall either refer a matter to the Executive or a 
committee; or insert, add, alter or leave out words from the motion. A 
further amendment shall not be moved while an amendment is being 
considered. The proposer of the original motion has a right of reply on the 
amendment. The proposer of the amendment has no right of reply on it. 
 

10.11 The ruling of the Mayor under this Rule shall not be open to discussion. 
 
11. Closure Motions and Budget Motions  
 
11.1  At the conclusion of a speech, another member may move that the 

question be now put or the meeting or debate be adjourned (closure 
motions). If this closure motion is seconded, the Mayor may rule that the 
matter should be discussed further on this occasion or shall put the 
closure motion to the vote. In the case of a debate closed by a motion that 
the question be now put the right of reply of the mover of the original 
motion will then be exercisable.  

 

Page 81



 10.10 

11.2  No motion or amendment to propose a precept shall be considered unless 
it contains sufficient detail within it to justify the precept moved. In 
determining whether or not a particular motion or amendment is in order 
the Mayor shall have regard to:  

 
i) the advice of relevant officers;  
ii) information available within the motion or amendment concerning 

proposed reductions or increases in service estimates, or proposed 
measures which would reduce expenditure or increase income, or 
the government grant implications of the level of expenditure 
proposed; and  

iii) any other relevant matter.  
 
12.  Voting  
 
12.1a  When a vote is to be taken the Mayor shall call for a show of hands or, 

with the exception of votes relating to the annual approval of the council’s 
budget and Council Tax precepts (as required by the Local Authorities 
(Standing Orders) (England) (Amendment) Regulations 2014), if one 
quarter of members present and voting stand, a recorded vote. If there is a 
recorded vote a record of those voting for and against will be kept and any 
member present but not declaring their vote shall be recorded as 
abstaining.  

 
12.1b For votes relating to the annual approval of the Council’s budget and 

Council Tax precept, the provisions for a recorded vote will take place 
automatically. 

 
12.2  Any member can ask for their vote to be recorded in the minutes provided 

the request is made immediately after the vote has been taken.   
 
12.3  Where three or more persons are nominated for any position and there is 

not a majority in favour of any one person, the person having the least 
number of votes shall be disregarded and a fresh vote taken and so on 
until there is a majority in favour of one person.  

 
12.4  If there are equal numbers of votes for or against, the Mayor will have a 

second or casting vote. There will be no restriction on how the Mayor 
chooses to exercise a casting vote. 

 
13.  Disorderly Conduct  
 
13.1  If at a meeting any member of the Council persistently disregards the 

ruling of the Mayor/Chairman by behaving irregularly, improperly or 
offensively or by wilfully obstructing the business of the Council the 
Mayor/Chairman or any other member may move "that the member 

Page 82



 10.11 

named be not further heard" and the motion, if seconded, shall be put and 
determined without discussion.  

 
13.2  If misconduct by the member continues the Mayor/Chairman shall move 

that the member named shall be excluded from the meeting and the 
motion, if seconded, shall be put and determined without discussion.  

 
13.3  If a member of the public interrupts the proceedings at any meeting the 

Mayor/Chairman shall warn the person. If the interruption continues the 
Mayor/Chairman shall order the person to leave the meeting. In the case 
of a general disturbance in any part of a meeting open to the public, the 
Mayor/Chairman shall order that those causing the disturbance leave the 
meeting. 

 
13.4  The Mayor/Chairman may, if the disturbance interferes with the business 

of the meeting, adjourn or suspend a meeting for such period as the 
Mayor/Chairman considers appropriate.  

 
14.  Petitions  
 
14.1  Petitions submitted under the Council’s Petitions Scheme attached as 

Appendix A to these procedure Rules will receive an acknowledgement 
from the Council within 10 working days of receipt. 

 
14.2  That acknowledgement will set out what the Council plans to do with the 

petition. 
 
14.3  If a petition contains more than 4,000 signatures it will be considered at 

the next available meeting of Full Council, unless the petition is asking for 
a senior council officer to give evidence at a public meeting. 

 
14.4  The petition organiser will be allowed 5 minutes to present the petition at 

the meeting and the petition will then be discussed by councillors for a 
maximum of 15 minutes. 

 
14.5  The Council will decide how to respond to the petition at this meeting.  The 

Council may decide to deal with the petition in the following manner:       
 
(a)  To take the action the petition requests;  
(b)  Not to take the action requested for reasons put forward in the 

debate; 
(c)  To commission further investigation into the matter, for example by 

the relevant Select Committee. 
 

Page 83



 10.12 

14.6  If the issue is one on which the Executive are required to make the final 
decision, the Council will decide whether to make recommendations to 
inform that decision.  

 
[Please refer to the Petition Scheme at Appendix A for full details.] 
 
15.  Suspension and Variation 
 
15.1  Subject to paragraph 2 of this Rule any of the preceding Rules, except 

Rules 12.1b and 12.2 may be suspended so far as regards any business 
of the meeting where suspension is moved.  

 
15.2  A motion to suspend the Rules shall not be moved without notice unless at 

least one half of the whole number of the members of the Council are 
present.  

 
15.3  Any motion to add to, vary or revoke any Rule, shall, when proposed and 

seconded, stand adjourned without discussion to the next ordinary 
meeting of the Council.  

 
16.  COMMITTEES  
 
16.1  When appointing to a committee, other than the Standards Committee or 

a Select Committee, the Council may also appoint the Chairman and Vice 
Chairman who in each case must be a member of the Council.  

 
16.2  Whenever 
 

(a) the Council is required to review the allocation of seats on 
Committees between political groups, or 

(b) the Council resolves to carry out such a review, or 
(c) a Committee is required to review the allocation of seats between 

political groups on an ad hoc Sub-Committee 
 

the Monitoring Officer shall submit a report to the Council or Committee, 
showing what allocation of seats would, in his/her opinion, best meet the 
requirements of the Local Government and Housing Act 1989. 

 
16.3   In the light of such a report, the Council or Committee, as the case may 

be, shall determine the allocation of seats to political groups.   
 
16.4  Whenever an appointment of a voting member of a Committee or Sub-

Committee falls to be made in accordance with the wishes of a political 
group to whom the seat has been allocated, and whenever such an 
appointment falls to be terminated in accordance with such wishes, the 
Monitoring Officer shall make or terminate the appointment accordingly.   

Page 84



 10.13 

 
16.5   A member of a committee may appoint any other member of his/her Group 

to be a substitute member in his/her place on a committee or sub-
committee (provided they have received any required training), with the 
exception of the Standards Committee and the Executive or where there 
are quasi-judicial issues. They will be accepted onto the Committee with 
power to speak and vote.  
 
The substitute member must inform the Chairman of their capacity as 
substitute at the start of the meeting and will remain for the whole of the 
meeting except where there is a genuine reason for leaving early.  Where 
a committee considers issues relating to appeals the committee members 
should remain the same throughout the process. 
 
The Protocol for substitutes set out in ‘Rights and Responsibilities’ in Part 
5 of the Constitution must be followed. (Note: no member may act as a 
substitute on the Development Control Committee or Licensing 
Committee/Sub-Committee unless they have received the appropriate 
training). 

 
16.6  The quorum of a committee or sub-committee is one quarter of those 

present and voting and not less than two. 
  
16.7  The Chairman of a committee may call a special meeting at any time. A 

quarter of the members of a committee may require the Monitoring Officer 
to call a special meeting. The requisition must be in writing setting out the 
business to be considered. The special meeting will only consider the 
business so set out. All meetings of committees shall be summoned by 
the Monitoring Officer. 

  
16.8  A copy of the agenda for every meeting shall be posted on the web site 

and on the intranet and sent electronically to all members of the 
committee.  

 
16.9  With the consent of the Chairman, a ward member may attend any 

committee open to the public and may speak (but not vote) on any matter 
of which they have knowledge that will help the committee with its 
deliberations. The Chairman’s decision on this is final. 

 
16.10 Any three members of a committee may ask that an item be placed on the 

agenda provided the Monitoring Officer receives written notice at least 10 
clear working days before the date of the meeting. Any item must be 
within the functions and terms of reference of that committee and the 
Monitoring Officer’s decision on this is final. 

 
17.  Declarations of Interest  

Page 85



 10.14 

 
17.1  A Member shall declare any interest they may have on any matter before 

the Committee at the beginning of the meeting or immediately it becomes 
apparent, giving brief details of the interest and completing the Declaration 
of Interests Form that will be kept with the Committee papers.  

 
N.B. Members are expected to be familiar with and consult the Code of 
Conduct and seek the advice of the Monitoring Officer in cases of doubt.  

 
 
 
18.  Applicability and Interpretation  

 
18.1  Rules 11 (voting), 12 (disorderly conduct), 13 (petitions) 16 (declarations 

of interest) and 17 (interpretation) shall apply to meetings of all Council 
committees, sub- committees and to the Executive with any necessary 
adaptation.  

 
Some committees and the Executive have their own rules and these will 
take precedence if there is a conflict.  

 
18.2  The ruling of the Mayor/Chairman as to the application and meaning of 

any Rule shall not be challenged at any meeting.  

Page 86



11.1 

AGENDA ITEM 11 

HIGH PEAK BOROUGH COUNCIL 

Report to Audit and Regulatory Committee 

25th May 2016 

Appendices Attached – Appendix A Proposed Protocol - Nomination of Mayor 

1. Reason for the Report:

1.1 To approve the proposed protocol for the annual nomination of the Mayor as 
recommended by the Constitution Sub-Committee. 

2. Recommendation

2.1 That the Committee approves the protocol for the nomination of the Mayor for 
inclusion within Part 5 of the Council’s Constitution. 

3. Executive Summary

3.1 The Mayor has been selected according to an established points system as 
referred to in Article 5 of the Council’s Constitution since 1980.  The 
Constitution Sub-Committee met on 29th February to consider this process. 

3.2 The basic principle is that the political group with most points as at 1st October 
each year has the opportunity to nominate the Mayor for the next municipal 
year. 

3.3 The system started with points allocated equal to the actual number of 
members in each political group (or to individual councillors who do not wish to 
join a political group).  Annual adjustments have since been made according 
to changes in each group’s strength. Whenever a group nominate a Mayor, 

TITLE: Mayoral Points System 

EXECUTIVE COUNCILLOR: Councillor Thrane, Executive Councillor for 
Finance and Corporate Services 

CONTACT OFFICER: Linden Vernon, Senior Officer (Governance 
and Member Support) 

WARDS INVOLVED: Not Applicable 

Page 87

Agenda Item 11



 11.2 

ten points are deducted from its points total. The points system does not apply 
with regards to the selection of the Deputy Mayor. 

 
3.4 Following the local elections in May 2015 there was a change in the make up 

of the Council’s political groups (i.e. Councillor Pritchard joined with the Liberal 
Democrat Group to form the Liberal Democrat and Independent Group).   

 
3.5 For the purposes of the report presented to the Council’s Audit and Regulatory 

Committee on 30th September 2015 for the Appointment of Mayor 2016/17, 
the points previously allocated to the former Independent Group were deleted 
(as the group would have ceased to exist due to being less than two 
members).  The Council’s Mayoral points procedure is currently silent with 
regards to this type of circumstance. 

 
3.6 The operation of the points system was discussed at a Group Leaders’ 

meeting which requested that the Constitution Sub-Committee consider the 
current process with regards to the position where a political group ceases to 
exist.   

 
3.7 Whilst examining this issue the opportunity has been taken to draft a proposed 

Protocol for the Nomination of Mayor (Appendix A) in order to provide a clear 
framework for future Mayoral nominations.  It is recommended that the 
protocol be formally included within Part 5 of the Council’s Constitution.   

 
3.8 In considering arrangements for a political group which ceases to exist 

guidance has been sought from the publication “Civic Ceremonial” which 
provides best practice advice on civic matters and from other local authorities 
which use a points system for the nomination of Mayor. This has found the 
following options with regards to accumulated points where a political group 
ceases to exist: 

 
 The accumulated points are deleted. 
 The accumulated points are distributed evenly between the remaining party 

political groups. 
 The accumulated points are frozen until seats are once again gained by 

that group on the Council. 
 
3.9 Taking into account the research undertaken the following arrangements are 

proposed (and contained in the suggested protocol) where political groups are 
no longer represented on the Council or form new groups: 

 
 That where a political group is no longer represented on the Council, the 

group’s Mayoral points will be deleted.  
 That on the formation of a new political group, the points accrued for the 

individual, non-aligned members, or the existing groups forming the new 
group, will be combined for the purpose of the Mayoral Points System. 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 88



11.3 

4. Options and Analysis

4.1 The Committee may decline the option to introduce the protocol, accept it as 
proposed or make amendments. 

5. Implications

5.1 Community Safety - (Crime and Disorder Act 1998)

None. 

5.2 Workforce 

None. 

5.3 Equality and Diversity/Equality Impact Assessment 

The Mayoral points system ensures that the nomination of mayor 
rotates amongst the Council’s political groups based on the political 
strength of each group. 

5.4 Financial Considerations 

There is an annual budget provision for a modest allowance for the 
Mayor and Deputy Mayor.  

5.5 Legal 

It is proposed that the protocol given at Appendix A be included 
within Part 5 of the Council’s Constitution. 

5.6 Sustainability 

None. 

5.7 Internal and External Consultation 

The report has been considered by the Constitution Sub-
Committee for recommendation to the Audit and Regulatory 
Committee. 

5.8 Risk Assessment 

Not applicable. 

Mark Trillo 
Executive Director (People) & Monitoring Officer 

Web Links and 
Background Papers 

Contact details 

Appointment of Mayor 2016/17 – report to 
Audit & Regulatory Committee 30th 
September 2016 

Linden Vernon 
Senior Officer (Governance and Member Support) 
Tel: 01238 28400 Ext 2141 

Page 89

http://www.highpeak.gov.uk/sites/default/files/meetings/papers/papers-1310696102/10.%2520Appointment%2520of%2520Mayor%25202016-17.pdf
http://www.highpeak.gov.uk/sites/default/files/meetings/papers/papers-1310696102/10.%2520Appointment%2520of%2520Mayor%25202016-17.pdf
http://www.highpeak.gov.uk/sites/default/files/meetings/papers/papers-1310696102/10.%2520Appointment%2520of%2520Mayor%25202016-17.pdf


 11.4 

Appendix A 
 

Protocol for the Nomination of Mayor 
 
1. The Mayor is selected in accordance with a points system as referred to in Article 

5 of the Council’s Constitution. 
 
2. The points system was introduced in 1980, since this time all political groups of 

the Council (and individual independent Members that may be elected to the 
Council from time to time) have been awarded 1 point for each member of the 
Council in that group.   

 
3. Each year the Council’s Audit and Regulatory Committee will receive a report to 

confirm the points accumulated by each political group as at 1st October.  This will 
take into account changes in political strength following all out elections and by-
elections etc. The group with the highest number of points will be invited to make 
the nomination for the Mayor the following municipal year. Whenever a group 
nominates a Mayor, ten points will be deducted from its points total. 

 
4. A recommendation will subsequently be made to Council to confirm which political 

group will be invited to make a nomination for the appointment of Mayor for the 
following municipal year.  Where possible it is recommended that at this stage the 
Political Group also confirms which councillor it intends to nominate at the 
following Annual Council meeting.  This will assist preparations for the incoming 
Mayor. 

 
5. In the event of an equality of points, the group which previously had nominated 

the Mayor most recently will not be given the right to nominate for that year. 
 
6. If the option of selecting a Mayor from within its own membership, or the 

membership of one of the other groups, is not exercised by the group having the 
highest number of points then that option will pass to the group with the next 
highest number of points. 

 
7. The following will apply where political groups are no longer represented on the 

Council or form new groups: 
 

 That where a political group is no longer represented on the Council, the 
group’s Mayoral points will be deleted.  

 That on the formation of a new political group, the points accrued for the 
individual, non-aligned members, or the existing groups forming the new 
group, will be combined for the purpose of the Mayoral Points System. 

 
8. The points system will be used in all years including the year prior to the Council’s 

all out elections. 
  
9. The points system does not apply to the nomination of the Deputy Mayor.  This 

will ordinarily be agreed between political group leaders (the Deputy Mayor does 
not necessarily progress to become Mayor). 
 

10. The Constitution Sub-Committee shall consider and report upon any difficulties 
which arise in the operation of this Protocol.  

 

Page 90



Document is Restricted

Page 91

Agenda Item 13
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 To approve the Minutes of the meeting held on 23 February 2016
	AUDIT AND REGULATORY COMMITTEE

	4 External Audit Update
	5 External Audit Planned Audit Fee for 2016/17
	6 2015/16 Internal Audit Periodic Report - February to April 2016
	106 Internal Audit Periodic Report
	106a Appendix 1
	106b Appendix 2
	106c Appendix C

	7 Internal Audit Annual Audit Plan 2016/17
	107 Internal Audit Annual Audit Plan
	107a Appendix 1

	8 Whistleblowing Policy
	108 Whistleblowing Policy
	108a Whistleblowing Policy Appendix

	9 LGA Sector Led Body for the Appointment of External Auditors Opt-in
	HIGH PEAK BOROUGH COUNCIL
	Report to the Audit & Regulatory Committee

	Appendices Attached:
	None
	Community Safety - (Crime and Disorder Act 1998)
	Workforce
	Equality and Diversity/Equality Impact Assessment
	Financial Considerations
	Legal
	Sustainability
	Internal and External Consultation
	Risk Assessment
	ANDREW P STOKES
	Executive Director (Transformation) & Chief Finance Officer
	Contact details
	Location
	Web Links and
	Background Papers

	10 Review of the Council and Committee Procedure Rules
	10. Review of the Council and Committee Procedure Rules
	10a. Appendix A

	11 The Mayoral Points System
	HIGH PEAK BOROUGH COUNCIL
	Report to Audit and Regulatory Committee

	Appendices Attached – Appendix A Proposed Protocol - Nomination of Mayor
	Community Safety - (Crime and Disorder Act 1998)
	Workforce
	Equality and Diversity/Equality Impact Assessment
	Financial Considerations
	Legal
	Sustainability
	Internal and External Consultation
	Risk Assessment
	Mark Trillo
	Executive Director (People) & Monitoring Officer
	Contact details
	Web Links and
	Background Papers

	13 To approve the exempt Minutes of the meeting held on 23 February 2016



